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Vision, Mission and Values of the IPCC

—(ERF - AIF - §AREBERIRFERGE
A fair and impartial police complaints system
accountable to the public
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Ensure police complaints are handled in a fair,
impartial, effective and transparent manner,
and advise on improvement to police
procedures to enhance service quality and
public accountability
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Chairman’s foreword
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Independent Police Complaints Coungi
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| hereby present the eighth Independent Police Complaints Council
(IPCC) Report on behalf of the Council.

| assumed office as the IPCC Chairman in 2014. From then on, the
Council has experienced with the public a number of public order
events and changes in social climate. We have risen above the impacts
and challenges of the Occupy Movement and the Mong Kok Riot. As
a matter of fact, the IPCC upholds its core values of independence
and impartiality with poise while staying true to its evidence-based
principle, and never gives any rushed opinion or comment on any
social event or individual complaint case. Over the past three years
we continued to strengthen the base while strive to enhance the
integrity of the two-tier police complaints system and increasing the
efficiency for complaints handling and administrative work. In this
way we can continue to improve and excel in every aspect of our
work.
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Handling complaints

Handling complaints arising from the Occupy Movement and the
Mong Kok Riot objectively

The 2014 Occupy Movement gave rise to a total of 172 Reportable
Complaints and 357 Notifiable Complaints. As of the end of this
reporting period, the Council finished reviewing most of these
complaints and endorsed 168 (97 %) of the Reportable Complaints,
including an assault case involving a senior police officer. The rest of
the cases either required further investigation by the Complaints
Against Police Office (CAPO) or were suspended due to legal
proceedings. Out of the 29 Reportable Complaints arising from the
2016 Mong Kok Riot, 16 were endorsed by the Council, while four
are under review and the remaining awaiting full investigation by
CAPO.

Handling serious complaints independently and impartially

As for other serious cases, we handled a number of complaints of
public interest during the year, including the incident where a mentally
incapacitated person (MIP) was mistakenly accused of manslaughter.
10 of the total 17 allegations were classified as “Substantiated”, some
of which were so reclassified following the IPCC's review, and
disciplinary action would be taken against a total of nine police
officers.

Improving efficiency of complaint review proactively

In order to improve the efficiency in case handling, we increased the
frequency of working level meeting between the IPCC and CAPO
from once every three months to once every two months, and spared
no effort in processing complicated, long-pending cases. The number
of cases falling within this category decreased to four at the end of
this reporting period from high double-digit level in 2015. In the
meantime, we shortened the time required for reviewing complaint
cases by approximately 10% during the reporting period, from an
average of 144 days in the previous year to 133 days.

Changing the classification of investigation results

As always, the IPCC is committed to ensuring a fair and impartial
classification of investigation results for all allegations. During the
year, a total of 209 allegations were reclassified, an increase of nearly
60% year-on-year, as requested by the IPCC. 21 of them were
reclassified as “Substantiated” from “Unsubstantiated” or “No Fault”
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etc., and nine as “Not Fully Substantiated” from “Unsubstantiated”
or “No Fault”etc. This shows the stringency of IPCC’s monitoring
process.

Improving arrangement for large-scale processions

The IPCC attaches great importance to enhancing service quality of
the Police. Through reviewing complaint cases, we make
recommendations for improving police practices and procedures,
including those related to the handling of large-scale processions. The
Police adopted and followed up on many of our recommendations
during the years. 2016 marked the second consecutive year without
any complaints arising from the 1 July procession.

Making recommendations for improving police services

Over the past three years, we have also made more than 40
recommendations to the Police for improvement. These include 10
which were given this year, covering the improvement of procedure
for dealing with the MIPs. During the period, several police procedures
were improved including the police guidelines on dealing with sexual
offence victims as well as those on using video cameras during public
order events.

Enhancing the Observers Scheme

Another recent focus of the IPCC is to strengthen the monitoring
function of Observers and stepping up support to them, facilitating
their observation of interviews for complaints investigation and
collection of evidence conducted by CAPO. During the period, in
addition to upgrading the online system for the Observers Scheme to
enable appointment booking at any time, workshops were organised
for Observers to share their experiences and give direct feedback to
CAPO. Furthermore, we actively coordinated with the Police and other
Government departments to improve the administrative arrangements
in relation to observations, such as assigning time slots at certain
detention facilities for complaint-related interviews, thus reducing the
on-site waiting time of Observers. Observer attendance rate was
87.9% for this year, the second consecutive year achieving above the
85% level.
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Corporate governance

Stepping up governance and administrative efforts on all fronts

In 2014, the Council has established a new position, Deputy Secretary-
General (Management), to enhance governance and strengthen the
administrative capability of the Secretariat. The new Secretary-General
took office in 2016 and the consultancy report on Human Resources
Management was completed in the same year. In light of the
recommendations from the consultant, annual performance appraisal
for the IPCC Secretariat staff as well as enhanced measures for training
and retaining talents were pursued so that staff could benefit from a
structured training scheme. In addition, two Assistant Secretary-
General positions have been established during the year to further
improve the supervision and efficiency of the case reviewing process.

Enhancing legal support and research

The Council set up its fifth Committee, the Legal Committee, which
comments and expresses views on legal issues arising from daily
operations of the Council and examination of complaint cases. Under
the supervision and guidance of the Legal Adviser, a research team
was also formed to better manage and analyse the statistics and
information related to the review of complaint cases while providing
support to the Legal Committee. The team also studies international
practices in complaint handling mechanisms as well as police
guidelines and procedures, facilitating the review of complaints and
the discharge of statutory duties by the Council.

Enhancing the application of information technology

During the year, a number of information management systems have
been automated including those for complaint case information and
human resources management, with a view to increase the work efficiency
of our staff while strengthening data analysis and management functions.

Promoting public and youth education

The IPCC began its school pilot programme in September 2016,
sharing with secondary and primary school students the two-tier police
complaints system, the principles of reviewing complaint cases, the
IPCC core values, and the rights and responsibilities of making
complaints. Furthermore, the IPCC visited the Fight Crime Committees
across the 18 districts in Hong Kong, introducing its work to the local
communities and listening to their views. At the same time, a
“Chairman’s column” was added to our website to provide more



ERREE S ENET S TEMEZ(E
RHVEH -

B SR

EREEBNRFBR BELXar
2016/17 FEEHEE 1,567 RFH AR H
ERE - BFHEELEFERE - BEDH

LE@EJ%%W‘E% 5507 * %} 812,800
HEE BFH 5 THKHI13% K
17% ° FIEZEER R BEE A IEIE KA
2 [ BR2BST (a0 - ZiEABIEHIT
Eﬁ‘%ﬁqﬂiﬁu%ﬂii%ﬁﬁb CSRBERE
BRME) EH45%  HRR[1TA
E/RREXREMEHE] - 154935% °

RAEERSETE - ZMVEERHER
[ERTHEINEZRELA  REF
HINFRBA0% - BB RIGB L
FIAR3% BZEEFEARHL -

W H ST e — KR A @ &R
Aﬁﬁﬁﬂﬁﬁﬂmﬁﬁ'mﬁfﬁﬁ

RATRHER B - SRERFHQ
HERBGEF -

R RINE B

RE RRORASURNRNEE—

ﬁﬁ%%i BEBAL REER

SEREL  FRELL  FEE
%E~%$ﬁﬁi~%ﬁ%ﬁi*%ﬁ
WAEENMERERE ﬁEWﬁIEEEHEPqﬂ<
BRI ERERNEEEEEERE
MER  BASEL TERNER - &

/\El

R 8L 8 NERE Wiﬁﬁ
WERBE - HHEAREER O

REEEEHIL - NIE- a%?féﬁfmﬂﬁ
B BTFEETENMEBERERRER
HE - HEXREEE -

-

2E
SPHRE - SBS » JP
B

information about the work of the IPCC and complaint cases where
appropriate.

Complaint statistics analysis

As for the overview of complaints, the IPCC received investigation
reports of 1,567 new cases during 2016/17, levelling off the previous
year. The IPCC endorsed 1,550 investigation reports involving more
than 2,800 allegations, decreasing 13% and 17% year-on-year,
respectively. “Neglect of Duty” (e.g. police officers failing to take
proper action or conduct full investigation when carrying out their
duties) remained the most common allegation, accounted for
approximately 45% of the total, followed by “Misconduct/ Improper
Manner/Offensive Language”, representing about 35% of the total.

As for the classification of investigation results, we noticed a sharp
increase in the number of allegations classified as “False”, a jump of
over 40% compared to that of previous year. While the figure
represents less than 3% of the total, we hope the public understand
that a complaint mechanism is one of the cornerstones for a liberal
society. Therefore, a Complainant should make sure that all information
provided is accurate when executing his/her civil rights, so that our
public resources for complaint handling could be effectively deployed.

Gratitude for retired Members

Last but not least, | would like to extend our sincere gratitude to each
of the retired Members: Mr Simon Ip Shing-hing, Ms Noeline Lau Yuk-
kuen, Hon Kenneth Leung Kai-cheong, Dr Carol Ma Hok-ka, Mr
Lawrence Ma Yan-kwok, Dr Hon Helena Wong Pik-wan, Ms Sandy
Wong Hang-yee, Ms Mary Wong Tak-lan, Mr Adrian Yip Chun-to and
Mr Peter Yan King-shun, who made tremendous contributions to the
Council in their years of service by dedicating their effort to reviewing
cases and addressing Committee matters. | would also like to thank all
our Members, Observers, Secretary-General and Secretariat staff. Let
us continue to work together to uphold the IPCC’s core values of
independence, impartiality and integrity, strengthen Hong Kong's two-
tier police complaints system and create a better future for our home.

|

Larry KWOK Lam-kwong, SBS, JP

Chairman
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Management Committee
Chairman
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e Chartered Civil Engineer

Report 2016/17  The Independent Police Complaints Council ~ ©



e

[

&Z 8 Members of the IPCC

=8

Members

HEZESLSE - BBS ' JP
Mr Clement TAO
Kwok-lau, BBS, JP

< M20M2F10R1BESE
s RRBREMBER

* Appointed on

1 October 2012
* Insurance and Financial

Services Sector

MERHE - TR0
\r Prof Vincent HO

PREZHEEL - BBS © P
Dr Eugene CHAN
Kin-keung, BBS, JP

*RWBIE1R1BESE
cEWEBRR
* Appointed on
1 January 2013
* Medical Sector

e #42013F 15 1 A BH{F

o T#F
e Appointed on
1 January 2013
e Engineering Sector

2016/17 TYESRE

ERERRRRMN

BBS
Mr Arthur
LUK Yee-shun,

BBS, SC

e #2013%F 15 1 H EBE{F

o ERER

e Appointed on
1January 2013

e Legal Sector




FERZL  MH P

Ms Ann SO Lai-chun,
MH, JP

BmEEL

BBS ' MH - OStJ » JP
Dr Eric
CHENG Kam-chung,
BBS, MH, OStJ, JP

*R201AE1R1REZRR
cEleE
* Appointed on
1 January 2014
¢ District Council

*R2015F1R1ARERE
s REBBREER
* Appointed on 1 January 2015
¢ Public Services and Philanthropic
Sector

ME@mERE
NMr Richard
HO Kam-wing

HEMEE
Mr Barry
CHIN Chi-yung

°B2015%F 15 1 HBZ{F
o Bt F

e Appointed on 1 January 2015

e Accountancy Sector

°#2016F 15 1 HBE{F
o KR

e Appointed on 1 January 2016

e Legal Sector

Report 2016/17  The Independent Police Complaints Council 411



e

[

&Z 8 Members of the IPCC

=8

Members

ELEEXRXEE
Mr José-Antonio
MAURELLET, SC

*R206F1R1BEERE
« BZRR
* Appointed on
1 January 2016
¢ Legal Sector

BRsR £
Mr Clement
CHAN Kam-wing

*N2016E6R1REEE

- BHR
* Appointed on
1 June 2016
* Accountancy Sector

RESKT

Ms Ann
AU Chor-kwan

WAkBRE
Mr Wilson K\WONG

Wing-tsuen

e #2016%F6 A 1 H EZF

o BF
e Appointed on

1 June 2016
e Commercial Sector

° #2017 15 1 H BE{F
o SRITFR
e Appointed on
1 January 2017
e Banking Sector

Z8E 2016/17 LIERE



SFkEEE

Mr Alex
CHU Wing-yiu

ERERRXELN

Mr Douglas
LAM Tak-yip, SC

s R F1R1ARER
o &F  RIZER
* Appointed on
1 January 2017
* Finance/\nsurance
Sector

*MN2017EFE1R1RESRE
c BZRR
* Appointed on
1 January 2017
¢ Legal Sector

3

i FRLCE=E
BBS * MH : JP
Dr David
LEE Ka-yan,
BBS, MH, JpP

EMBERT
Miss Sylvia LEE

120175 15 1 HBZH{F
o ERER
e Appointed on
1 January 2017
e Legal Sector

° 1820175 1A 1 HEBEFE
o B
e Appointed on
1 January 2017
e Medical Sector

Report 2016/17  The Independent Police Complaints Council 13



e

[

&Z 8 Members of the IPCC

=8

Members

ERfExt ' MH » JP
Ms Melissa Kaye
PANG, MH, JP

*M2017E1R1REZRR
« BZRR
* Appointed on
1 January 2017
¢ Legal Sector

RigFXxL
Ms Shalini Shivan
SUJANANI

cR2017TE1R1BRESE
s BOR
* Appointed on 1 January 2017

¢ Banking Sector

WERRE P
NMr Johnny YU

\Nah-yung, JP

BWEENE
Prof Martin

\NONG Chi-sang
e 820175E 18 1 A B &

o B
e Appointed on

1 January 2017
e Commercial Sector

e #2017%F 18 1 H BH{E
o BEF

e Appointed on
1 January 2017
e Medical Sector

2016/17 TYESRE



B=
FZIkES
Highlights of the year

EEeriTRERERR
- NERBERT AERER
S EEHIE R BB L A(E -

= I~

The IPCC launched the school pilot
programme and introduced the
two-tier police complaints system and
IPCC's functions and work to secondary
and primary school students during

these school visits.
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Legal Committee was established to express views
on the legal issues related to the Council’s work.
The Committee is supported by the newly established

Research Team.
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Members visited various
District Fight Crime
Committees to introduce the
work of the IPCC and listen

==

to their views.
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Two press conferences were held for the

Islands District Office
release of the annual report and IPCC

Newsletter.
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The IPCC visited the Mong Kok District and Police
Tactical Unit Headquarters in Fanling to understand

different department’s operation in the Force.

FNEFEEBEEFEERETFEE L
B AN IR AR 2R B e B
Mr Larry Kwok Lam-kwong (Chairman) introduced
the two-tier police complaints system and IPCC's
work at a luncheon at the Chinese General
Chamber of Commerce.
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Four joint meetings were held between
the IPCC and CAPO during the reporting
period.
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Members conducted on-site
observation of the Police handling of
the 1 July procession.
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Members had a meeting with Society for
Community Organization to discuss
matters relating to the Police detention
facilities.
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H @ SR ERERRFHERLER
Members had meeting with delegates from the
Independent Broad-Based Anti-Corruption
Commission Committee from Victoria, Australia, to

exchange views on systems for monitoring complaints
against police officers in different jurisdictions.
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Police complaints system in Hong Kong
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CAPO
investigates ~_ m=S
complaints BZFERS

IPCC reviews
investigation
reports

Hong Kong has adopted a two-tier police complaints system. All
complaints against the Police are referred to the Complaints Against
Police Office (CAPO) of the Hong Kong Police Force for handling and
investigation. This is the first tier of the police complaints system.

When CAPO has completed the investigation of a Reportable
Complaint, it will submit the investigation report, together with
relevant files, documents and materials, to the Independent Police
Complaints Council (IPCC) for scrutiny.

If any doubt arises during its review of the investigation report and
the relevant materials, the IPCC will ask CAPO for clarification or
further information. If the IPCC finds the investigation inadequate,
it will request that the case be further investigated. Only when the
IPCC completely agrees that the complaint case has been properly
handled will it endorse the investigation report. This is the second
tier of the police complaints system.
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Hong Kong’s two-tier police complaints system

RFBERAERFHER
CAPO investigates
complaint

EEEELRAERE

IPCC reviews

R SERE W ARE RIREF
CAPO receives Reportable Complaint

ETHRE

Investigation

BRFEERERAERE

CAPO submits investigation report

EESERRERE
IPCC reviews investigation report

investigation report
BBRER/R

Agrees with investigation
result

o RFHESROIBIRFA

o L MHIRF ALKBES1TE)

o BEERmE REEKIE
BRMEFRERRE RN/ K
TRRERIHEZ
CAPOQ responds to Complainant
Police take appropriate action
against Complainee
IPCC may offer
recommendations to the
Commissioner of Police and/or
the Chief Executive on
improvements to police
practices and procedures

FABAERE

Disagrees with

investigation result

o MFRFERREREFHIEH
EZER

o |PCC seeks clarification or
further information from CAPO

TEMRE

Rejects report

o AERKFERREFN AL

o B REABERHE
RRXTFERSHIETEE®
i
May request CAPO to

MERENENERARRFERERA
SRR FRENRIE - BESERE
DRTEHRE - IARBUHER - RN
BB R b &= SR E IR A B IE A
AE - WAEFRERMITHREERH
BUBERIF BN E R MEE -

reinvestigate complaint

May interview witnesses to
clarify uncertainties

May bring up the case during
working level meetings or joint
IPCC/CAPO meetings

The advantage of the two-tier system is that it ensures the fair and just
handling of complaints against the Police. As an independent statutory
body, the IPCC can objectively observe, monitor and review the handling
and investigation of Reportable Complaints by the Commissioner of
Police, and put forward opinions and recommendations regarding such
complaints to the Commissioner of Police and the Chief Executive.
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The role and functions of the IPCC
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The IPCC was established as a statutory body on 1 June 2009 under
the Independent Police Complaints Council Ordinance (IPCCO) (Cap.
604, Laws of Hong Kong) to observe, monitor and review the
Commissioner of Police’s handling and investigation of Reportable
Complaints against the Police. With the IPCCO taking effect, the
Police have a statutory duty to comply with the IPCC’s requests. The
Ordinance enhanced the independence of the IPCC in carrying out
its monitoring functions.

The IPCC comprises a Chairman, three Vice-Chairmen and not less
than eight Members, all appointed by the Chief Executive. This
composition enables the IPCC to draw upon the diverse professional
expertise and experience of its Members to monitor CAPQO's
investigation of complaints against the Police in an independent,
impartial and thorough manner. As of 31 March 2017, the IPCC
comprises 28 Members.
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The main functions of the IPCC as provided for under the IPCCO are:

R BERNEBEREHRE REIENFERERSFNIE
To observe, monitor and review the handling and investigation of
Reportable Complaints by the Commissioner of Police
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To monitor actions taken or to be taken in respect of any police
officer by the Commissioner of Police in connection with
Reportable Complaints
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To identify any fault or deficiency in police practices or procedures
that has led to or might lead to a Reportable Complaint

I
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To advise the Commissioner of Police and/or the Chief Executive of
its opinion and/or recommendations in connection with Reportable
Complaints

—
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To promote public awareness of the role of the Council
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Monitoring procedures of the IPCC
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IPCC
Secretariat

IPCC Members
and Observers

Under the two-tier police complaints system, when an investigation
report of a Repontable Complaint is submitted by CAPO to the IPCC,
the Secretariat will conduct a preliminary examination on it and may
raise Queries and ask for clarification or further information from
CAPO. If the Secretariat has no Queries, the report will be submitted
to Members for scrutiny. If necessary, members can make further
Queries and discuss the case with CAPO at working level or joint
meetings.

If the IPCC's final decision is not to endorse the investigation results
of a particular case, it may disclose the disagreement of both parties
on the findings of the investigation to the Chief Executive and/or the
public.
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IPCC monitoring procedures
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The IPCC Interview
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Other independent
persons
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Complainants

In addition to reviewing the investigation report, the IPCC may ask
for interviews with persons related to the case to clarify matters. The
IPCC Interview was introduced in 1994, and the IPCC may, for the
purpose of considering CAPO's investigation reports, interview any
persons who may provide relevant information or assistance, including
complainants, complainees, witnesses, or other independent persons.
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Observers Scheme
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The Observers Scheme was introduced in 1996 to strengthen the
IPCC's monitoring function. Under the Scheme, Observers appointed
by the Secretary for Security may attend interviews and observe the
collection of evidence in connection with CAPO’s investigation of
Reportable Complaints. IPCC Members can likewise conduct such
observations.

Insofar as practicable, CAPO will notify the IPCC at least 48 hours in
advance of any impending interview or collection of evidence. The
IPCC Secretariat will then notify Observers of the observations. Apart
from prearranged observations, Observers can also attend and observe
investigations without prior appointment.

The role of an Observer is primarily to observe and report. The
Observer is to remain impartial, without interfering or offering
personal opinions, while observing the conduct of interviews or
collection of evidence.

After each observation, the Observer will submit to the IPCC a report
stating whether the interview or collection of evidence was conducted
in a fair and impartial manner. Should any irregularities be reported,
the IPCC will follow up with CAPO.

All persons who are to be interviewed by CAPO in connection with a
Reportable Complaint can request an Observer to be present during
the interview. Upon receipt of such a request, the IPCC will make
every effort to arrange the observation accordingly.

As of 31 March 2017, there were 107 IPCC Observers.
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Appointment of Observers
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2.
3.
(Section 33 of IPCCO)

The IPCC Observers are appointed by the Secretary for Security. To ensure their impartiality, the following
persons are not eligible for appointment as Observers:

1. A person who holds an office of emolument, whether permanent or temporary, in a Government bureau
or department

2. The Secretary-General, the Legal Adviser or any other employee of the Council
3. A former member of the Police Force
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IPCC OBSERVER
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Joint meetings: IPCC and CAPO

EERae MR ERETerARTEE The IPCC and CAPO conduct quarterly joint meetings to discuss
BEER  IwmRFERMEESEE - matters relating to police complaints.

BTEARETHREZSNTE B To enable the public to better understand the work of the IPCC, part

FeRRAE LA ETRLEES of each joint meeting is open to the public and the media. The dates
o BiEemm M .J%%ﬁ “He and agendas of the joint meetings are published in advance on the
FREZePBE AT AHE,e IPCC's website. Minutes of the open part of each meeting are also
ENERLHENE LHEEE SR uploaded to the IPCC's website (http:/Awww.ipcc.gov.hk).
(www.ipcc.gov.hk) ©
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Reportable Complaints

“Reportable Complaints” refer to complaints, lodged by members of
the public, that are not vexatious or frivolous and are made in good
faith, relating to the conduct of police officers while on duty or who
identify themselves as police officers while off duty. The complaint
should be made by or on behalf of a person directly affected by the
police misconduct.

CAPO must submit investigation reports to the IPCC for scrutiny as
stated in the Ordinance. However, investigation reports and
information on the following complaints need not be submitted to
the IPCC:

e Complaints arising from the issue of a summons or imposition
of a fixed penalty, which solely relate to the validity of the issue

e Complaints lodged by a person in his official capacity as a
member of the Police Force

e Complaints that fall under the scope of investigation of other
statutory bodies

VEERZHEIBINIREE® 2016/17 LIERS



f..

AHME R

N T 78 0E i & | - 7R FE R XAt
BARKXECTENRG S —EEES
[ZARMEIREF ] - fi0 - HERALIFL
FIRER - AN IFERIFENALE
HEVIRER

BRRAERRBAEPREIANERF]
MERBETEEEER - 6EZER
REARRFREESAERKF]
A AR ERRIEHERAER © 1R
ERREEENERZTANEE
AN - R R BRI E R R X

H IS X R FRE R R AR -

RIFRERGR
CAPO

Notifiable Complaints

“Notifiable Complaints” are complaints not categorised as
“Reportable Complaints”, or complaints that need not be submitted
to the IPCC as listed above. These include anonymous complaints or
complaints lodged by persons who are not directly affected by the
case.

CAPO must regularly submit a summary of “Notifiable Complaints”
to the IPCC for scrutiny. If the IPCC considers any of these cases to
be “Reportable Complaints”, the IPCC may raise relevant suggestions
to CAPO, and CAPO will then need to reconsider the categorisation
of the complaint. Moreover, the IPCC may request CAPO to submit
further supporting information or explanation regarding any particular
complaint.
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A complaint may consist of one or more allegations. After CAPO has conducted a full and thorough investigation

into an allegation, it will be classified as one of the following six types according to the findings:

Substantiated

Substantiated
Other Than
Reported

Not Fully
Substantiated

Unsubstantiated

No Fault

False

An allegation is classified as “Substantiated” when there is sufficient reliable evidence

to support the allegation made by the Complainant.

An allegation is classified as “Substantiated Other Than Reported” when matters
other than the original allegations raised by the Complainant, which are closely
associated with the complaint and have a major impact on the investigation, have

been discovered and are found to be substantiated.

An allegation is classified as “Not Fully Substantiated” when there is some reliable
evidence to support the allegation made by the Complainant, but it is insufficient

to fully substantiate the complaint.

An allegation is classified as “Unsubstantiated” when there is insufficient evidence

to support the allegation made by the Complainant.

Two common reasons for classifying a complaint as “No Fault” are, first, the
Complainant may have misunderstood the facts; and second, the Complainee was
acting under lawful instructions from his superior officer or in accordance with

established police practices.

An allegation is classified as “False” when there is sufficient reliable evidence to
indicate that the allegation made by the Complainant is untrue, be it a complaint
with clear malicious intent, or a complaint which is not based upon genuine

conviction or sincere belief but with no element of malice.

When a complaint is classified as “False”, CAPO will consider, in consultation with
the Department of Justice as necessary, prosecuting the Complainant for

misleading a police officer.
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Other complaint classifications
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Some complaints are handled by other means, so that no full investigation is necessary. These complaints can be

classified as:

Withdrawn

Not
Pursuable

Curtailed

Informally
Resolved

A complaint is classified as “Withdrawn” when the Complainant does not wish to pursue
the complaint after making it.

Even when a Complainant initiates the withdrawal of a complaint, the IPCC will ensure that
no undue influence has been exerted on the Complainant, and that the Police can learn from
the complaint. The IPCC will also ensure that CAPO will take appropriate remedial actions.

A Complainant’s withdrawal does not necessarily result in the case being classified as
“Withdrawn". The IPCC and CAPO will examine the available evidence to ascertain whether
a full investigation is warranted despite the withdrawal and/or whether any of the allegations
are substantiated on the basis of information available.

An allegation is classified as “Not Pursuable” when:

o The identity of the officer in the complaint cannot be ascertained
o The cooperation of the Complainant cannot be obtained to proceed with the
investigation

The above definition does not mean that no further action will be taken when the Complainant
cannot identify the Complainee. CAPO will make an effort to identify the Complainee(s) on
the basis of the information available. Only after such an effort has been made to no avail
will the conclusion be reached that the identity of the Complainee cannot be ascertained.

If a complaint has been classified as “Not Pursuable” due to lack of cooperation from the
Complainant, it may be reactivated later when the Complainant comes forward to provide
the necessary information.

A complaint is classified as “Curtailed” when it has been registered with CAPO but is curtailed
—i.e. not fully investigated — on the authorisation of the Chief Superintendent (Complaints
and Internal Investigations Branch), owing to special circumstances such as known mental
condition of the Complainant.

The Informal Resolution Scheme aims at a speedy resolution of minor complaints, such as
allegations of impoliteness or use of offensive language, the nature of which is considered
relatively minor.

A minor complaint suitable for Informal Resolution will not be subject to a full investigation.
Instead, a senior officer, of at least the rank of Chief Inspector of Police, will act as the
Conciliating Officer and make separate enquiries with the Complainant and the Complainee
regarding the facts of a complaint. If the Conciliating Officer is satisfied that the matter is
suitable for Informal Resolution, and the Complainant is in agreement, the complaint will be
informally resolved.
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UMELCO Police Group

The establishment of the IPCC can be traced back to 1974, when
the Commissioner of Police set up CAPO to investigate police
complaints from the public. Having considered that the investigations
should involve an independent body, the Commissioner of Police
invited the sub-committee of the Unofficial Members of the
Executive and Legislative Councils (UMELCO), which was responsible
for handling police and security matters, to monitor CAPO complaint
investigations in 1977; this was the prototype of the two-tier police
complaints system. In 1978, the UMELCO Police Group presented
its first report on police complaints to the Governor (reporting period
from 1 September 1977 to 30 April 1978), which was then submitted
to the Legislative Council for review on 16 August 1978. From then
on, the UMELCO Police Group prepared an annual progress report.

After the UMELCO Police Group was established, there was a drastic
increase in the number of police complaints which required it
monitoring. The high workload indicated there was a need to
strengthen and broaden the monitoring system structure. Thus, the
Government set up a working group to review the UMELCO Police
Group's monitoring of CAPO in early 1984.

Police Complaints Committee

In 1986, after the Government meticulously reviewed the working
group’s recommendations, the then Governor restructured the
UMELCO Police Group and set up an independent police complaints
monitoring Committee. According to the new organisational
structure, the Committee included Justices of the Peace as members,
and a supporting secretariat was set up. The group was renamed
the Police Complaints Committee.
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Independent Police Complaints Council -
before becoming a statutory body

In December 1994, the Committee was further revamped to pave
the way for becoming an independent statutory body, clarifying the
Council’'s powers and functions. Both the English and Chinese names
of the Council were modified to better reflect its independence.

The Bill that suggested changing the then IPCC into a statutory body
was introduced to the Legislative Council in July 1996. The Bill
proposed clarifying the powers and functions of the then IPCC, in
order to reinforce its authority in handling police complaints, and
to heighten public awareness of the Council as an independent
monitoring entity.

As some Legislative Council Members raised a number of Committee
Stage Amendments that might bring fundamental change to the
police complaints system, the Bill was withdrawn by the Government
on 23 June 1997.

Independent Police Complaints Council -
after becoming a statutory body

In 2004, the Government relaunched its plan to change the then IPCC
into a statutory body, with a view to empowering it with a legal basis
to discharge its functions and raise public confidence in the two-tier
police complaints system. On 29 June 2007, the Independent Police
Complaints Council Bill was gazetted. The Bill was tabled at the
Legislative Council on 11 July 2007 for First Reading.

The Legislative Council passed the IPCCO in July 2008. The Secretary
of Security then decided that the IPCCO would come into effect on
1 June 2009 and the IPCC would become a statutory body on the
same date. The Chinese name of the Council was modified to
highlight its monitoring role, while the English name was retained.
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Number of investigation reports and allegations
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Number of Reportable Complaint cases endorsed and received

2016/17 2015/16

1,567 1,572
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Reportable Complaint
cases endorsed

1,550 1,784
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During the reporting period (1 April 2016 to 31 March 2017), the
IPCC received reports from CAPO on the investigation of 1,567 new
Reportable Complaint cases, a decrease of 0.3% compared to that
of last year.

In the same period, the IPCC endorsed the results of investigations
for 1,550 Reportable Complaint cases (including 107 reviewed cases),
a decrease of 13.1% compared to that of previous year.
There was a total of 2,807 allegations, excluding the reviewed
cases, a decrease of 16.5% compared to that of last year. The three
major allegations in descending order were “Neglect of Duty”,
“Misconduct/ Improper Manner/ Offensive Language” and “Assault”.



BANEEHT (REESE)TRT
=

The following chart shows details of the number of allegations
endorsed (by nature):

(

EEwEAnER

Allegations endorsed by the IPCC

I 2016/17 #5542 Total number of allegations: ?
EiT4 ions:
B 2015/16 #5142 2L Total number of allegations 3'360

et oSt
Neglect of Duty

TRIEIRRERE
= eE
Misconduct/
Improper Manner/
Offensive Language

BT

Assault

I

N

Threat

B AR
Unnecessary
Use of Authority

12IEER
Fabrication of
Evidence

B
Police Procedures

HAhsErT
Other Offences

245 8.7%

157 4

103
149

57 2.0%

55 1.6%

2 01%
9 0.3%

3 01%

9 03%

i mRNERRE - B RMEFATRERLRE100% ©
FEUFHEZFENIABIAE ©

346

114 4.1%

7%

3.7%

4.4%

1,285 45.8%
1,528 45.5%

998 35.5%
1,107 32.9%

10.3%

Note: Percentage shares may not add up to exactly 100% due to rounding of figures.
Figures are as at 31 March of the respective reporting year.

J
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Investigation findings

1£2016/17 F ¥ 18 1B #) 2,807 18 I8 1%
B R EEFAENIEIEF9361H - EF
AW B EZRBE]  HABLK
FHBAEEENS2% o 4OIE%J§25IJ7%
[ RICRBEFRBE]  543% : 1
BRI AIBELAT2EHERT 15
1.1% : 389IEHW I AT HEZFE] &
41.5% ; 3758 AW EBSE | - (&
40.1% : 73R BIWS AT ERTE]
HRER7.8% °

EHSN1,871HEFETEHEASH
BIER 204 TEEBR [ BREES R
R (EEFETEAATETERH
10.9% ° 653 1845 A& [RaFHEE ] - 14
34.9% : 1,014IBEH Y B EEEE |
1554.2% c R BEEEHIN A KL 1EHA
E]o

FRIBIEFREE S 2016/17 TERE

Of the 2,807 allegations endorsed in 2016/17, 936 were fully
investigated. Of these, 49 (5.2% of fully investigated allegations)
were classified as “Substantiated”; 40 (4.3%) as “Substantiated Other

than Reported”; 10 (1.1%) as “Not Fully Substantiated”; 389 (41.5%)
as “Unsubstantiated”; 375 (40.1%) as “No Fault” and 73 (7.8%) as
“False".

Of the remaining 1,871 allegations which did not require full
investigation, 204 (10.9% of those not fully investigated) were
“Informally Resolved”; 653 (34.9%) were classified as “Withdrawn”;
1,014 (54.2%) as “Not Pursuable”. There was no allegation classified
as “Curtailed”.



2015/16 FF2016/17 FHAE L R H The following table shows a comparison of the figures regarding
BRI TE investigation results between 2015/16 and 2016/17:

4 )
EEREAMNAERR

Investigation results endorsed by the IPCC

I 2016/17 #4881 Total number of allegations 2’807
B 2015/16 422K Total number of allegations 3'360

o,
BEPEE 49 5.2% 201617 EEEAENEE 30
Substantiated 81 6.7% 2016/17 Allegations that required full investigation
2015/16 &2 EFHE T 1206
REBREZPEY 40 4.3% 2015/16 Allegations that required full investigation ’
Substantiated Other
Than Reported 60 5.0%
EETEERBE
Not Fullygbstantiated 10 1.1%
22 1.8%
BEEE
Unsubstantiated 389 41.5%
523 43.4%
ik i3k
No Fault 375 40.1%
469 38.9%
EBTHE
XFalse 73 7.8%
51 4.2%
BEIBEES AR 204 10.9%
Informally Resolved
141 6.5%
R 653 34.9%
Withdrawn 800 37.1%
. (]
Eidy gy 1,014 54.2%

Not Pursuable

1,213 56.3%

2016/17 EFETEEFEHIEE 1.871
2016/17 Allegations that did not require full investigation 7

2015/16 EHFETEREFEHIEE 2. 154
2015/16 Allegations that did not require full investigation ’

i HRNERRE - BHRMBFIARERLRZ100% © Note: Percentage shares may not add up to exactly 100% due to rounding of figures.
k FEHRTHEZFENIA3A ° Figures are as at 31 March of the respective reporting year. J
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EEeEANAERKAERMNERRF (REEENRERRES)
Number of allegations involved in the Reportable Complaints cases endorsed by the
IPCC (by nature and by results of investigations)

TRTE/BERE/
HERE

Misconduct/

2T Improper Manner/ Es3T ol -]
Neglect of Duty  Offensive Language Assault Threat

F1{5 Year 2016-17 2015-16 2016-17 2015-16 2016-17 2015-16 2016-17 2015-16

48 2 H A E RIHE1E Allegations that required full investigation

EEHEE

Substantiated 35 67 " 7 0 1 0 1
FIEERREZHEE

Substantiated Other 36 53 1 1 0 0 0 1

Than Reported

Eix2EHEE
Not Fully Substantiated 3 14 5 4 0 2 1 0

LR
Unsubstantiated 151 229 190 220 17 29 4 10

. 458 55 260 353 72 62 8 10 4 5
No Fault

R 8 2 18 15 14 8 8 4
False

/N5t Subtotal 493 718 297 309 39 50 17 21

M|EEITEE AT RIEIE Allegations that did not require full investigation

ﬁiﬂﬁﬁ)‘i;ﬁﬁﬁ_ 97 77 107 62 0 0 0 0
Informal Resolution

BREFRD

Withdrawn 312 349 228 276 60 91 32 60
MAEEE 383 384 366 460 146 205 65 76

Not Pursuable

/&t Subtotal 792 810 701 798 206 296 97 136

# 8 Total
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Unnecessary Use of  Fabrication of EBEF HsET By
Authority Evidence Police Procedures Other Offences Total

2016-17 2015-16 2016-17 2015-16 2016-17 2015-16 2016-17 2015-16 2016-17 2015-16

3 4 0 0 0 0 0 1 49 81

2 2 0 0 1 3 0 0 40 60
1 2 0 0 0 0 0 0 10 22
22 25 5 8 0 0 0 2 389 523
25 26 5 8 1 3 0 2 375 469
0 2 25 20 0 0 0 0 73 51
53 61 35 36 2 6 0 5 936 1,206
0 0 0 0 0 2 0 0 204 141
13 17 7 5 0 0 1 2 653 800
37 71 15 14 0 1 2 2 1,014 1,213
50 88 22 19 0 3 3 4 1,871 2,154
103 149 57 55 2 9 3 9 2,807 3,360
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Police actions against defaulting officers

ERREFEEEZ S FANEZRY In this reporting year, disciplinary proceedings or internal actions
HEIREBAETEILERML were taken against 89 police officers regarding 77 cases endorsed
HEARITE - BRITRER - I8 by the IPCC. The following table shows the breakdown of figures:

BFRTE:

é N

EFH12015/16 % 2016/17 FHES & E:BARHFHER
FERBEHARRIBITEH

Police actions taken against defaulting officers

regarding cases endorsed by the IPCC during 2015/16 and 2016/17

A BB H Number of officers

2016/17 2015/16
A. FIEERER Criminal proceedings 0 1
B. #2#E 9 Disciplinary proceedings 9 15

C. HhAEBITE) Other internal actions

&4 Warnings 18 35
Bll& Advice 62 109
@8 Total 89 160

5 2015/16 FMHE FTE AR D EREZE - FAHAE -

Note: Figures for 2015/16 have been adjusted following case reviews.
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Number of Reportable

Complaint cases involved

2016/17 2015/16

HiFSmaA B
Number of persons
attending interviews

\

J

(EEESHRN)E 201K BEESR
EAZmE HIRE - ATLAg RAE(AIRESAsk Al
ERmEAEESRHEERKIBHOA
T -2@RENAKERTRBRALE
BEH  HEESTERRKRFERRDN
HEAE -

WEBMA > HE=UAL  BERER
AR~ BRI FAREESHFHLFE
H - P R=RIRHER -

According to section 20 of the IPCCO, in the course of examining
CAPO’s investigation report, the IPCC may interview any person who
is or may be able to provide information or assistance to the Council
in relation to the report. The purpose of interviews is solely to clarify
matters with the concerned persons. The IPCC will not take over the
investigative role of CAPO.

During the reporting period, three persons including two Complainants

and one Complainee were invited by the IPCC to attend interviews
involving three complaint cases.
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Queries raised W|th CAPO

R E R

CAPO

F2016/17 [ - EEGRRFERR

BHIBH9941EE A W%@%Eﬁ%@
AR ERRIEHHSAER - fInE
HRERENAE - E‘f# RERTREE
ZERNEE  MEEERESTHNIIE

RERERES -

RIB(CEZESERD)  RFERRBA
NEZEENENR - BEREEWEIK
MAEERNOE  EREFSHEE
MBS - MEREE  AREXTZRE
MR EZ NMEE BT RMEDE
BERER  BESAUR—FEAR
RERRBRELEH - JHFRERE
TERE Qaﬁtﬁhpﬁ‘:}f’?p%ﬁﬁ‘ =1

EREERRERE  TemeuRR

WREBAN - KA S74TBEABIRFER
SR HWE WA HEEeRE
ARETFHET®mE  BEMEREER
FRR o

2016/17 TEfhE

994

=t
Qu

deees)

®
=
[+
»

IPCC raised a total of 994 Queries to CAPO in 2016/17. These Queries
included various requests to CAPO, for example, changing the content
of the investigation reports, providing more information and
clarification regarding the report, and the IPCC giving improvement
suggestions on the Police’s works, etc.

According to the IPCCO, CAPO must reply the IPCC's Queries. When
the IPCC receives the responses from CAPO, the vetting team will
scrutinize the information, explanations and views before passing on
to the Members of the vetting sub-group for consideration of
accepting the reply. When necessary, the IPCC can raise follow-up
Queries regarding the same matters, or bring up the matters to the
working level meetings for further discussion with CAPO until the
IPCC is satisfied with the explanation, and so endorses the case.

During the reporting period, 574 Queries were accepted by CAPO.
The remaining Queries were given satisfactory explanation and
resolved after further Queries by the IPCC’s or discussion with CAPO
at meetings.



e R HE AR AR E R T & The following table shows the breakdown of figures regarding Queries

raised by the IPCC:

H ¥ 8 Total number of Queries: 994
AR ERRIEZAERN
Number of Queries accepted by CAPO: 574
R ERREZNEN

e Number of Queries accepted by
Total number of Queries CAPO

4% Year

2016-17 2015-16 2016-17 2015-16

E )% 5 Nature of Queries

AEGERS A

Classification of investigation results

WEERERMEFOZR
Recommended improvements to police
practices and procedures

BREHBERMERF
Compliance with police practices and
procedures

fTEE#ENER

Reasons for exercising police power
HEZESRARMITHRHER

Comments on actions against defaulting
officers

EEAEREEH
Clarification of information in
investigation reports

AESERE

Investigation thoroughness

HthHH

Other Queries

# 8 Total

360

10

22

26

329

132

106

994

324

17

12

18

251

61

101

793
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BEEST 201617 FAEERD B
136018 E ) - MERFERREEE
MERIAE 19818 - At FLAMEERAELE
REVIETEE 20978 © BIE ¢

Classification of investigation results

Out of a total of 360 Queries raised by the IPCC in 2016/17 regarding
the classification of findings, CAPO accepted 198 of them and as a
result, the investigation results of 209 allegations were reclassified,
including:

4 )
9 HH[ELRE I A EZHEE
reclassified from “Unsubstantiated” to “Substantiated”
5 HR[WEBE (RIEERHEEE
reclassified from “No Fault” to “Substantiated”
4 HAB[WEBE  RIEBLEZE2RHEE ]
reclassified from “No Fault” to “Not Fully Substantiated”
43 B[ WEBE (RIE[ELRE ]
reclassified from “No Fault” to “Unsubstantiated”
26 HR[EERE [RI AT W EBEE |
reclassified from “Unsubstantiated” to “No Fault”
1 1 EHR[EEZEE [RIAETERTE]
reclassified from “Not Pursuable” to “False”
\_ _J
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The following table shows the breakdown of figures regarding
changes of classifications:

2016/ 17 FEEEEHENBSFRESR
Changes of classification endorsed by the IPCC in 2016/17

&% 9 8 Final classification

\LRR
EFEE |LEE
RRS3M WIEHEE  NotFully WEEE of: 8 8 ERTHE Not AR
Original classification Substantiated Substantiated Unsubstantiated ~ No Fault False Pursuable Withdrawn
WEAEE
Substantiated N/A 0 ! 0 0 0 0 1
ErR2EAEE
Not Fully Substantiated 4 N/A 0 0 0 0 0 4
EEE
Unsubstantiated 9 4 N/A 26 0 7 0 46
3 %58 88 No Fault 5 4 43 N/A 7 2 0 61
EEFHE False 0 0 6 6 N/A 4 0 16
#&;%5EZ Not Pursuable 2 0 4 37 1" N/A 1 55
¥R E withdrawn 1 1 4 14 4 2 N/A 26
# % Total 21 9 58 83 22 15 1 209

SEoh - BEEEFARA T 40H [ RER
WEFERBE |MIEE - EFRAF20EE
EEE IR N E AR MG - BNE
36 REHREEAIFHEE]* -

* [EXEE|EEEMERCERERBSH
FH - EUFREASREHREE - BH
BRI TR -

WEERERNEFOER

RIF(CEESHRD) B8R &EE
SR ERE R RAE T 5l Bk AT eS|
BURRHIR R R 2 B2 - M E B B
RHITBREEFLES - EHA - &
EERREERERMIEFREL T 10
TRiE

Moreover, the IPCC endorsed 40 counts of “Substantiated Other Than
Reported” allegations; of these, 20 were registered after the IPCC
had raised Queries. Another 36 incidents were recorded as “Outwith”
matters*.

* An "Outwith” matter refers to any breach of discipline or Police Force orders that
has been disclosed in the course of a complaint investigation but is not closely
related to the complaint.

Recommended improvements to police practices
and procedures

Under section 8(1)(c) of the IPCCO, the IPCC may make
recommendations to the Commissioner of Police and/or the Chief
Executive if it identifies any fault or deficiency in a police practice or
procedure that has led to or might lead to a complaint. During this
reporting period, the IPCC suggested 10 improvement measures to
the Police.
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Compliance with police practices and procedures

The IPCC may raise Queries with CAPO to ascertain if the police
officers involved in a complaint case have complied with relevant
police practices and procedures in exercising their constabulary
powers. During this reporting period, 22 Queries were raised under
this category.

Reasons for exercising police power

The use of police power by officers in the discharge of their duties is
also a concern of the IPCC. During this reporting period, the IPCC
raised nine Queries with respect to the reasons for the use of police
power.

Comments on actions against defaulting officers

While the dispensing of advice or disciplinary action to police officers
is a matter for the Commissioner of Police, the IPCC will examine the
actions taken or to be taken to ascertain whether they commensurate
with the gravity of the offence. The IPCC raised 26 Queries on such
actions during the reporting period.

Clarification of information in investigation reports

During this reporting period, the IPCC raised 329 Queries regarding
the ambiguous points in investigation reports. For example, CAPO
was requested to provide more background information of the
complaint cases.

Investigation thoroughness

During this reporting period, the IPCC raised 132 Queries regarding
the thoroughness of police investigations. These Queries included
asking CAPO to conduct more in-depth investigation, including
conducting interview with witness and collection of more evidence.
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Time required for examining complaint cases

B EAZRMT BB HEERNE
MER  BEEGRDRERFERRN
BREZEARNEME - AERZEEER
M HENR - EREMEB[HESN
ORI RFGETNRMEHERIE - PTARE
REERABERERGEEGHRGE
& EEREEN  BERFETRE -

EZ RN BE A 2015/16 F
JEH) 144 X R ZE 2016/17 FEH) 133
9{ °

The number of days required to examine a complaint case depends
on a number of factors, such as the complexity of the case and
whether the IPCC agrees with CAPO’s views. Complaints that are
relatively minor or frivolous in nature are now handled via “Informal
Resolution” and Expression of Dissatisfaction Mechanism, the
complaint cases that are handled via full investigation are of a more
complicated nature, and to meticulously scrutinise this type of
complaint cases requires more time.

The average number of days required to examine an investigated case
decreased from 144 days in 2015/16 to 133 days in 2016/17.

g )
2016/17 2015/16
ERERRENFHEY
Average number of days
required to examine a 133 144
complaint case
\ Y
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BREH

Observers Scheme L

Number of
Observation

1,817

g3 e
Collection of
evidence
247

KERB
Without prior
appointment
18

2016/17

BRaEs
Number of
Observation

AR |
Scheduled Interview
1,799 1,570

1,704

KiEWH g g S
Without prior Collection of
appointment evidence

15 301

FERHE 2|
Scheduled Interview
1,689 1,403

201 617  EEENZENERER Under the Observers Scheme, 1,817 observations were conducted by

=B EIHETT T 1,817 KB - Members and Observers of the IPCC in the year 2016/17, a 6.6%
ﬁj:ij:ﬂT 6.6% @ SHTEILLTHH increase compared to that of last year. Those observations included
B1,799R  REEFEHWBI18K & 1,799 scheduled observations and 18 observations without prior

1,817)RE= - H1,5700 e EB=eH - appointment. Of the 1,817 observations, 1,570 involved the
Her247 R BB BB WERNTIE - conducting of interviews and 247 involved the collection of evidence.

B4 BUEREHEREBIRFEES 2016/17 TIEWmSE
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Number of observations attended by IPCC Observers and notifications received

HERE EEEM H & Ltk & Attendance rate
Observations Notifications (B%/IEEEM)
attended received (Observations/Notifications received)
2016/17 1,817 2,068 87.9%
2015/16 1,704 1,928 88.4%
. J
R EREEN Notifications from CAPO
HRERBFZEAATHELT R CAPO has agreed that, insofar as practicable, the IPCC will be notified
HITomABIBEWER K TFEZLe at least 48 hours in advance of any impending interview or collection
DIANAS /|NBE HY B AN - 1E 2016/17 & - of evidence. In 2016/17, 2,068 notifications were received from

BTSRRI ERRI2,068 0 BA © CAPO.

EARBEHN  ELeHREEFET During this reporting period, IPCC Observers attended 1,817

1,817 RER - BIEERSEMBEEI observations, including interviews and the collection of evidence,
£ (FEEBAAISTO% @ HELX comprising 87.9% of the notifications received. The attendance rate
MAT—FHE o is similar to that of previous year.

KSRk
Notifiable Complaints

( N
AMERFEENF

Number of Notifiable Complaint cases

2016/17 2015/16

REETEERHAME RFHESR 729 479
Notifiable Complaint cases examined by the IPCC
EMBERSAERKH 6 3
Cases re-categorised as Reportable Complaints
\. J
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BENSKFNIER  BEZeR AR
TSR AAERIGH - EFERR
FERRIELBRAEZ - WFERR
FIREENE B IR

EHREHRA - EESFLT 7297RBA
ERFANERERE  WEFRAH LA
52.2% ° EFEZIE - AP AFERGFER
JEEQ%;T@ AW B BB AAERR

FIE A il bl

Under section 9 of the IPCCO, CAPO must regularly submit a summary
of Notifiable Complaints to the IPCC for examination and explain the
reasons for categorising the complaints as Notifiable Complaints. If
the IPCC considers that any of these cases should be classified as
Reportable Complaints instead, the IPCC will give relevant suggestions
to CAPO, and CAPO will then need to reconsider the categorisation.

During the reporting period, the summary of 729 Notifiable
Complaints as examined by the IPCC, an increase of 52.2% compared
to that of the previous year. After the examination, six cases have
been re-categorised as Reportable Complaints as per the IPCC's
recommendations.

Expression of Dissatisfaction Mechanism (EDM)

(
REFARBRFHERENF

Number of EDM cases

2016/17 2015/16

BEZEERHREFHREIER
EDM cases examined by the IPCC

~\

1,229 1,331

EWRESAERKRHR
Cases re-categorised as
Reportable Complaints

18 10

ENBESAME KRR
Cases re-categorised as
Notifiable Complaints
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FEHFIT - FEHIREFH T RBEE BIRFR
ERREETNREEREEAEHER
HIEEE R - SRR A TmBERED
BRI R ARV AER o JNA] BSREH
AIEFUREF AT SRR IR IR © BRI
HABOER MEARDBINE - RFER
R HITE R B R R E A i (E 2R Y
JIRTEESRX -

TERERA - BEZSHBRT 1,229
KARFTETMETIRENESR  REF
THT63%  HP 18RERELLs
B ENREABERNG - —=A
WEHREAAMSKF -

NAEs5h
Public enquiries

RREEWAE  BESXRL T TIRBEE
HATRAEHTEAIKEER - THRE
BN - BEZE g HINE| 6,349 R A RFE R
Bt FE BENFBENES © BREP
DEETemEERBENTHRIN - HER
EAMERBIRFERSE - BERHF
ERMBREFESERRER 84
5 B 1% AR 75 A 5 A B (2] 78 N 3 I R
j@o

To handle minor complaints more effectively and make optimal use
of investigation resources, the IPCC and CAPO introduced the EDM
in 2015 as an alternative to the formal complaint investigation process
for handling minor complaints.

Through the EDM, a Complainant can directly reflect his/her
dissatisfaction and views to the commender of the Formation
concerned. If the Complainant is still not satisfied with the results of
the EDM, he/she may lodge a formal complaint. In order to maintain
the integrity of the EDM and ensure appropriate categorisation, CAPO
is required to regularly submit a gist of the EDM cases to the IPCC for
vetting.

During the reporting period, the IPCC examined 1,229 cases handled
via the EDM, a decrease of 6.3% compared to the previous year.
Among these cases, 18 cases have been re-categorised as Reportable
Complaints as per the IPCC's recommendations and one case has
been re-categorised as Notifiable Complaint.

In order to enhance transparency, the IPCC has set up various channels
for the public to enquire or express their opinion to the IPCC. During
the reporting period, the IPCC received 6,349 public enquiries via
telephone, email, fax and in person. Except for enquiries that are not
directly related to the IPCC, all enquiries regarding the two-tier police
complaint system, including those relating to complaint cases and
Observers Scheme, are replied and followed up within the time under
the IPCC’s performance pledge.
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M ESRE N EIRREE S

y

Ef WiEFA

Complainee(s)

Allegation(s)

T BRRRST
Neglect of Duty

2 RS

Neglect of Duty TIREER

Woman Detective
Inspector (WDIP)

3 BIREST
Neglect of Duty

4 BB
Neglect of Duty

5 BR2BSF BEES
Neglect of Duty Detective Police
Constable (DPC)

BRIRERRNEEX SR =S

Original Classification(s) by CAPO  Final Classification(s)

A 4 3B B EERBEE

No Fault Substantiated

A 4 3B B EAEE

No Fault Unsubstantiated
fuﬂ = /fni =4

Unsubstantlated Unsubstantiated

RISk EERBEE

No Fault Substantiated

I AR RS

No Fault No Fault

HERRREESTHER =AW
ETRENBARNE - B —RKAE
D*“mlikﬁ)iiiﬁdn RREANG

PETEBEERE @,muw«m
FEFEEE  MERXIEBRAR
ATRHER - Tﬁ%ﬁﬂt&ﬁ)ﬁiﬁ%ﬁ‘“

W EARSF AT 2B T | Wi
o HRMIERIELBEESNEZ

% BARAEERRVEENTES
i | R [ EEAEE] -

m;:hﬂ.

—%&aﬁ)\(ﬁm*/\)ﬁ REBAR
FBEXE RPNRE (BRESE)
BIBIECREAG GG E19& 15
ASEMAZBINABRESE ] (G

[BATI])  MRFEIHEHITER © 1R
BEEET  REEREMHNLESER
R(FEERFA-D)BELXEA  RE

HEEAR R AARZIER - UHURRE
ZEEEEOH -

2016/17 TS

This case highlights the meticulous approach adopted by the IPCC
in scrutinising a complaint case in relation to the Police’s handling
of a wounding case. When handling wounding case, a Woman
Detective Inspector (WDIP) had not taken reasonable steps as soon
as possible to ascertain the seriousness of the victim’s injury before
laying a lenient charge against the offender. Subsequently, the WDIP
refused to provide necessary information for the victim to proceed
with the civil claim. There were four allegations of “Neglect of Duty”
made against the WDIP by the victim. After the IPCC’s vetting, two
of those allegations were re-classified from “No Fault”, as suggested
by CAPO initially, to “Substantiated”.

Case background

A Complainant (a female victim) had been hit and injured in a
wounding case. The defendant (a male offender) was later charged
with “Wounding or Inflicting Grievous Bodily Harm”, contrary to
Section 19 of Offences Against The Person Ordinance (“Wounding
19"). The defendant pleaded guilty and was convicted. Upon the
court’s instruction, the WDIP who had been handling the case called
the Complainant to obtain an update on her health condition and
the losses she suffered for the court’s consideration of the
defendant’s sentence.
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Knowing the sentence, the Complainant requested the WDIP
(Complainee 1) to provide information for her filing for a civil suit
against the defendant. Dissatisfied with the WDIP’s handling
approach, the Complainant lodged a complaint with four allegations
of “Neglect of Duty” against the WDIP, including: laid an
inappropriate lenient charge of “Wounding 19" against the
defendant but not the more serious charge of “Wounding or Striking
with Intent to Do Grievous Bodily Harm”, contrary to Section 17 of
Offences Against The Person Ordinance (“Wounding 17") without
considering the seriousness of the victim’s injury, [Allegation 1:
Neglect of Duty]; failed to inform the prosecutor of the full medical
findings conveyed by the Complainant to the WDIP on the phone
[Allegation 2: Neglect of Duty]; failed to notify the prosecutor that
the Complainant had requested a compensation order by court over
the phone [Allegation 3: Neglect of Duty]; and failed to provide the
Complainant with the Brief Facts of the case to facilitate her civil
action against the defendant [Allegation 4: Neglect of Duty].

Meanwhile, the Complainant also complained another Detective
Police Constable (DPC/ Complainee 2) who had handled this case
and failed to report the seriousness of her injury to the WDIP
[Allegation 5: Neglect of Duty].

CAPO’s investigation

[Allegation 1: Neglect of Duty]

According to CAPO’s original investigation report, the Magistrate
had no doubt about the charge to which the defendant pleaded
guilty. Therefore, the WDIP had “No Fault” in laying the charge of
“Wounding 19" against the defendant.

[Allegation 2: Neglect of Duty]

CAPO's investigation found that the WDIP had inquired the
Complainant about her latest health condition as directed by the
court and reported to the prosecutor the same by memo and over
the phone. Therefore, CAPO classified this allegation as “No Fault”
because the WDIP had fully disclosed the injury of the Complainant
to the prosecutor.

[Allegation 3: Neglect of Duty]

The WDIP denied that the Complainant had told her to request the
court for compensation order. As there was no independent evidence
of what was said by both parties, CAPO classified this allegation as
“Unsubstantiated”. The IPCC agreed with this classification after
vetting.
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[Allegation 4: Neglect of Duty]

The WDIP explained to CAPO that she refused to provide the
Complainant with the Brief Facts of the case because the
Complainant did not clearly state her intention to proceed with a civil
claim and the refusal was to fulfill the obligations of the Personal Data
(Privacy) Ordinance (PDPO) (Brief Facts would include the defendant’s
personal data). CAPO considered that the WDIP had “No Fault” in
refusing the request.

[Allegation 5: Neglect of Duty]

CAPQ’s investigation shows that the DPC had obtained the victim’s
preliminary medical report from a public hospital, and once he was
notified of the victim’s detailed medical findings by a private hospital,
the DPC reported the same to the WDIP. CAPO was of the view that
the DPC did perform his duty to submit all the information collected
to his supervisor and thus had “No Fault” in this allegation. The IPCC
agreed with this classification after vetting.

Outwith Matter

In addition, during CAPQO’s investigation, it was found that the WDIP
did not comply with the provision of the Personal Data (Privacy)
Ordinance to reply to the Complainant’s written request in writing
within the time limit. An Outwith matter was registered against the
WDIP who should be advised without Divisional Record File (DRF)
entry.

IPCC's observation

After scrutinising CAPO’s investigation report and all the available
evidence, the IPCC disagreed with CAPO’s classification of investigation
results concerning some of the allegations (i.e. Allegations 1, 2 and
4). A working level meeting was held between the two parties to
discuss the case.

[Allegation 1: Neglect of Duty]

According to CAPO’s statement, the WDIP considered that there was
no evidence showing that the defendant had planned to wound the
Complainant. As such, she classified the case as “Wounding 19" but
not the more serious charge of “Wounding 17". The IPCC opined
that the WDIP had misunderstood the difference between these two
offences. The main difference between the two offences is not just
whether the suspect had premeditated to wound the victim, but
whether the suspect had the intent “to maim” the victim. Therefore,
the seriousness of the injury is the crux when considering what charge
to be laid. Furthermore, the facts of the case show that after disputing
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with the defendant in the MTR compartment, the Complainant had
walked for some distance before she was attacked. It was believed
that once she left the MTR, she was followed by the defendant looking
for a chance to hit her head twice with a glass bottle from behind.
Based on the victim’s serious injury and the facts of the case, the IPCC
was of the view that “Wounding 19” was not a charge that
adequately reflected the seriousness of the case.

The WDIP admitted that before laying the charge, she was informed
by the DPC that the Complainant sought medical consultation at a
private hospital after consulting at a public hospital (the Complainant
said that she had been admitted to the private hospital for four days
and received 13 stitches on the wound and suffered from a broken
tendon in her right hand). The WDIP explained that she wrote the
brief facts of the case (without mentioning the stitches or the broken
tendon) only based on the medical findings from the public hospital
because she did not have the findings from the private hospital and
was not given the consent to obtain them.

The IPCC opined that the WDIP's way of handling was unreasonable
and inappropriate. She should have taken reasonable steps to ask the
Complainant for her consent to obtain the medical findings from the
private hospital in order to ascertain the injury and decide the
appropriate charge. The IPCC suggested to reclassify this allegation
from “No Fault” to “Substantiated”, which was accepted by CAPO.

[Allegation 2: Neglect of Duty]

Available evidence shows that the WDIP provided the information
regarding the Complainant’s health condition, including 11 stitches
on the wound, to the prosecutor as instructed by the court. However,
the Complainant claimed that it was 13 stitches as conveyed to the
WDIP on the phone. Since there was no independent evidence of
their phone conversation, the IPCC agreed with CAPO’s reclassification
of this allegation from “No Fault” to “Unsubstantiated”.

[Allegation 4: Neglect of Duty]

According to the Police’s internal directives, the Police should not issue
blanket refusal to all requests for information from the members of
the public. If some documents, such as Brief Facts of the case, may
help the prospective plaintiff assess the merits of their claims or to
explore pre-action settlement at the pre-wit stage, the Police are
obliged to provide the victim with necessary information (including
the defendant’s personal data). In this circumstance, the PDPO does
not inhibit such disclosure of the third party’s personal data.
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The IPCC opined that the Complainant was obviously the victim in
the incident. Considering the defendant’s guilty plea, the Complainant’s
health condition and economic loss, the Complainant was justified
and eligible to claim compensation from the defendant under the
above-mentioned police’s internal directive. Apparently, the WDIP did
not follow the internal directive when declining the request. The IPCC
suggested to reclassify this allegation from “No Fault” to
“Substantiated”, which was accepted by CAPO.

Finally, the WDIP should be warned with Divisional Record File (DRF)
entry.

ez IR A BRFERFNEXSR B¥S8E
Allegation(s) Complainee(s) Original Classification(s) by CAPO  Final Classification(s)
1 B 2B =T ®5 HEEE HAEE
Neglect of Duty Police Constable (PC) Unsubstantiated Unsubstantiated
2 B 2B =T AR i35k EEREE
Neglect of Duty Senior Inspector of No Fault Substantiated

Police (SIP)
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This case demonstrates that the IPCC was meticulous in examining a
complaint case that involved a traffic accident. A Senior Inspector of
Police (SIP) failed to carefully consider all evidence before summonsing
the Complainant for “Pedestrian Negligence”. Upon the IPCC’s
review, the “Neglect of Duty” allegation was reclassified from “No
Fault” to “Substantiated”.
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Case background

When the Complainant (a woman) was crossing a carriageway, she
was hit by a moving vehicle. Suffering from abrasion on her hand, a
broken incisor and dizziness, the Complainant sat at the roadside
waiting for the help of ambulance men. A Police Constable (PC/
Complainee 1) responded to the scene for enquiry and investigation.
The Complainant stated that the private vehicle’s horn did not sound.

The case was subsequently taken over by an SIP (Complainee 2), and
both the Complainant and the private vehicle driver had provided a
cautioned statement. The Complainant admitted under caution that
she was wearing a pair of earphones when crossing the carriageway.
The driver stated that he was driving at about 5 to 6 km per hour,
and that he had firstly sounded the horn and applied the brake right
before the incident happened. In view of the above, the SIP considered
the driver a responsible driver, and thus summonsed the Complainant
for “Pedestrian Negligence”. The Complainant pleaded not guilty.
After the trial, the court decided that the driver’s account of the event
was doubtful and acquitted the Complainant accordingly.

The Complainant later lodged a complaint to CAPO, alleging that the
PC at the scene failed to make an accurate record regarding what she
had said [Allegation 1: Neglect of Duty]; the SIP in charge of the
investigation failed to carefully consider the statement of the driver
and the photos of the scene before summonsing the Complainant
for the traffic offence [Allegation 2: Neglect of Duty].

CAPO'’s investigation

When interviewed by CAPO, both police officers concerned denied
the allegations. Regarding Allegation 1, the PC reiterated that he
properly conducted enquiry with the Complainant at the scene, and
jotted down what she said in his notebook. The Complainant told the
PC that she was listening to music with earphones and in a rush at
the material time.

Subsequently, the Complainant alleged that the PC had inaccurately
recorded what she said at the scene. The Complainant insisted that
she had only admitted wearing a pair of earphones but not listening
to music when the accident occurred. CAPO considered that in the
absence of any independent witness and corroborative evidence, the
case was a one-against-one situation. Therefore, Allegation 1 should
be classified as “Unsubstantiated”.

As for Allegation 2, the only fact in dispute was whether the SIP in
charge of the case had carefully considered all the available evidence
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before summonsing the Complainant. The SIP reiterated that he had
considered the available evidence, including the statement of the
driver, photos of the scene, driving speed and the Complainant’s
cautioned statement. He noted in particular the Complainant’s
admission of wearing a pair of earphones in the cautioned statement.
CAPO considered that the decision made by the SIP was fair and
reasonable. Therefore, Allegation 2 should be classified as “No Fault”.

The IPCC's observations

The IPCC agreed with CAPO's classification of Allegation 1 but not
that of Allegation 2. Having considered that the carriage way in
question was wide, the injury sustained by the Complainant (including
abrasion on the hand and a broken incisor) and the way the private
car's windshield was broken, the IPCC decided that the driver's account
of driving at 5 to 6 km per hour was unreliable. Furthermore, as the
private vehicle was only 4 to 5 meters away from the Complainant,
the driver should have immediately stopped the car instead of
sounding the horn first.

Since the SIP had not carefully considered the above factors before
summonsing the Complainant, the IPCC suggested CAPO to reclassify
Allegation 2 to “Substantiated”. CAPO finally subscribed to the IPCC's
view and the SIP would be warned with Divisional Record File (DRF)
entry.
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This case highlights the meticulous approach adopted by the IPCC in
scrutinising a typical tactical complaint. The Complainant initially
pleaded not guilty at court and challenged the voluntariness and
admissibility of his cautioned statements, and later raised complaint
allegations against the police officers for misconduct when performing
duties. However, right after the cautioned statements were ruled
admissible, the Complainant pleaded guilty instead. Upon conclusion
of his court case, he failed to respond to CAPO’s investigation. The
IPCC opines that all allegations should be classified as “False” and
would like to take this opportunity to reiterate the rights and
responsibilities for lodging complaints.

Case background

One early morning, the Police mounted an anti-dangerous drug
operation in a public housing estate. Several police officers (including
the four Complainees in this case) entered the Complainant’s residence
with a search warrant, upon which a plastic bag containing suspected
dangerous drug was found. Under caution, the Complainant admitted
that the drug was for self-consumption. He was arrested on the same
day and released on bail.

After chemical examination, the suspected drug was confirmed to be

Ketamine. The Complainant was thus charged with “Possession of a
Dangerous Drug”. During the trial, he pleaded not guilty and made
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a complaint allegation that the Police had threatened and induced
him during cautioned statement taking. The complaint case was then
referred to CAPO. CAPO contacted the Complainant via the Telephone
Recording System (TRS) and explained that his case was being treated
as “Sub-Judice”. He had no objection.

During the two subsequent court trials, the Complainant challenged
the admissibility of his cautioned statements as they were not
voluntarily made and raised three allegations against the Police. He
alleged that a Sergeant (Complainee 1) pointed his middle finger
towards him and threatened to arrest his whole family if he did not
admit the offence, whereas a Police Constable (Complainee 2)
threatened him to take out the dangerous drug by himself or else his
situation would be really bad [Allegation 1: Threat]; another Police
Constable (Complainee 3) failed to record his denial in the Police
Notebook and explain to him his rights [Allegation 2: Neglect of Duty];
and an Inspector of Police (Complainee 4) induced him to admit the
offence by making inappropriate verbal remarks [Allegation 3:
Misconduct].

CAPO'’s investigation

Having reviewed the relevant criminal case file, CAPO noted that the
Complainant had admitted to “Possession of a Dangerous Drug” both
at scene and during an interview under caution. His admission was
recorded in the Police Notebook and the cautioned statements, where
the Complainant had signed to confirm the content was true and
accurate. He also signed on the “Notice to Persons in Police Custody
or Involved in Police Enquiries” to confirm that the rights concerned
had been explained to him.

On the other hand, the Complainant raised three allegations against
the Police, but when the court ruled that his cautioned statements were
voluntary and admissible, he soon pleaded guilty instead and agreed
to the brief facts of the case. The Complainant was convicted and
eventually sentenced to a detention centre. Upon conclusion of the
court case, CAPO relaunched the investigation and tried to contact the
Complainant by registered post but no response had been received.

In view of the above, CAPO classified all three allegations as “No
Fault” in accordance with the court findings.
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IPCC's observations

The IPCC considered the case a tactical complaint exploited by the
Complainant as a line of defence at court with a view to creating
doubts. The allegations made by the Complainant have been proven
untrue as he pleaded guilty right after the cautioned statements were
ruled voluntary. As such, all allegations should be classified as “False”.
In this case, the Complainant was sternly warned for abusing the
complaint procedures.

If an allegation is classified as “False”, CAPO will consider, in
consultation with the Department of Justice as necessary, prosecuting
the Complainant for misleading police officer(s). By sharing the above
case, the IPCC would like to remind the public that it is the
responsibility of the complainant to provide authentic and credible
information while exercising the right to complain to ensure that all
parties involved receive fair and impartial treatment.

Recommended improvements to police practices
and procedures

Under section 8(1)(c) of the IPCCO, the IPCC may make
recommendations to the Commissioner of Police and/or the Chief
Executive if it identifies any fault or deficiency in a police practice or
procedure that has led to or might lead to a complaint. The following
is an example during the reporting period where the Police had
implemented refined procedures based on the IPCC’s recommendations.

Case background

In the reporting period, a complaint case was endorsed by the IPCC.
In this case, the Police mistakenly charged the Complainant, a mentally
incapacitated person (MIP), with “Manslaughter”. At the time of the
incident, the police officer in charge of the case decided to hold a
stand-up briefing to inform the public of the Complainant’s arrest
when the Complainant was being detained even though there were
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likely alibi that the Complainant was not at the scene. Furthermore,
the offence of “Manslaughter” was not charged until almost 48 hours
after the Complainant was detained. Later when the Complainant’s
alibi that he was not at the scene was established, the Complainant
had to wait for a few more hours before being released on bail.
Subsequently, the Complainant’s elder brother lodged a complaint
with 11 allegations against several police officers for their mishandling
of the case including the Police failed to arrange for an appropriate
adult to accompany the Complainant at the scene after arrest and
had put forward to the Complainant some leading questions during
the video recorded interview (VRI).

The IPCC eventually endorsed 10 allegations which were classified as
“Substantiated” or “Substantiated Other Than Reported”. These
allegations included “Misconduct”, “Neglect of Duty” and
“Unnecessary Use of Authority”. A total of nine police officers were
subject to disciplinary actions of different degrees.

Enhancing existing procedures for handling MIPs

The investigation report was first submitted by CAPO in September
2015. The IPCC learned that at the time when this incident occurred,
the laid-down police procedure only required an appropriate adult to
be present when a statement is taken from an MIP. There was,
however, no specific guideline on the handling of an MIP if he or she
was the subject of a criminal investigation. Therefore, after the
discussion between the IPCC and CAPO, the IPCC suggested that the
Police consider enhancing the guidelines with respect to conducting
criminal investigation of an MIP.

The Police later responded that a working group had been formed to
review and enhance the procedures for handling of MIP. The working
group had held meetings with different parent associations and
concern groups to exchange views on possible improvements. Later,
at the open meetings between the IPCC and CAPO in June and
October 2016, the IPCC requested CAPO to report on the progress
of the review and enhancement measures, and to provide the IPCC
with any revised or newly formulated guidelines and training materials
in due course. CAPO responded to the Queries raised by the IPCC
after the meetings and relevant information was provided for
Members’ reference.
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Having integrated suggestions made by relevant organisations, the
Police rolled out in November 2016 a series of enhancement measures,
including (1) the launch of “Care Card Scheme” to allow an MIP to
bring along the card voluntarily and in case of emergency or a law
enforcement investigation, the card can help police officers understand
the MIP's medical and communication needs; (2) the formulation of
"Behavioural Indicators Guide"”, which lists out some of the common
characteristics of MIPs and serves as a quick reference for law
enforcement officers’ early identification of MIPs; and (3) the
introduction of “Notice to Appropriate Adult”, which aims to better
inform appropriate adults of their roles, legal rights and responsibilities.
Whilst new measures have been implemented, the Force has also
provided thematic trainings to frontline officers with a view to
enhancing their skills and sensitivity when dealing with MIPs.
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In order to better discharge its function of promoting public awareness
of the IPCC’s role under section 8(1)(e) of the IPCCO, the Council
continues to proactively leverage on different channels to engage
stakeholders including the Police, the community representatives, youth,
concern groups, and monitoring bodies from other regions. During the
reporting period, the IPCC initiated a school pilot programme and visited
various District Fight Crime Committees (DFCCs). Through proactive
outreach to the public, we hope to communicate with the widen
community directly and thus deepen their understanding of the IPCC.

In recent years, the IPCC's public opinion surveys revealed that youth
respondents have relatively less knowledge on the IPCC’s functions
than other respondents. Thus, the IPCC launched a school pilot
programme in November 2016 to introduce Hong Kong's two-tier
police complaints system and the IPCC’s functions to secondary and
primary school students.

During the reporting period, the IPCC visited a total of eight
secondary schools and one primary school. At Liberal Studies classes
or morning assemblies, the IPCC's principles and procedures of
reviewing complaint investigation reports were illustrated through
the IPCC Files series and games. Miss Lisa LAU Man-man, Chairman
of the Publicity and Survey Committee, attended some of the visits
and shared her experience in case review as an IPCC Member.
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Through this programme, the Council aims to enhance students’

understanding of the IPCC's values i.e. independence, impartiality and
integrity, and recognise the rights and responsibilities when making

a complaint.

Starting from late 2015, the IPCC has visited various DFCCs to
introduce the work of the IPCC and the two-tier police complaints
system. During the reporting period, Hon Chris Cheung Wah-fung
(Vice Chairman), Miss Lisa Lau Man-man, Chairman of the Publicity
and Survey Committee and Members Dr Eric Cheng Kam-chung and
Mr Adrian Yip Chun-to attended the DFCC meetings of Yuen Long,
Southern, Eastern, Sai Kung, Tai Po, North, Islands, Kwai Tsing, Wan
Chai and Tsuen Wan districts, and listened to the valuable opinions
from DFCC members on the work of the IPCC.

Through members of the DFCCs, the Council aimed to strengthen
the connection with the community, understand the public’s view and
further improve the work of the IPCC in various aspects.
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ErZeNTETIFREREFREYHE The main duty of the IPCC is to monitor the Police in handling the
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R T REFABRITEBRENE different departments and levels of the Police for a better understanding
5R CAEEEeUEY  AF - RER on police officers’ performance of their duties. This facilitates the
BEEZIEF  MIEEREEHRRBER IPCC’s review of complaints in an independent, just and fair manner
o and offering of suggestions to improve police services.

EEeZENEREFANRMEEN Details of the police engagement activities during the year are as
NE follows:
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Mr Lawrence Ma Yan-kwok, Dr Carol Ma Hok-ka,
Ms Sandy Wong Hang-yee, Ms Mary Wong Tak-lan,
Mr Clement Tao Kwok-lau, Ir Prof Vincent Ho, Miss
Lisa Lau Man-man, Dr Eric Cheng Kam-chung, and
Ir Edgar Kwan Chi-ping attended the Police Service
Quality Wing Sports Day.
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Mr Larry Kwok Lam-kwong (Chairman) and 11
Members visited the Police Tactical Unit (PTU)
Headquarters in Fanling. They observed the
demonstration of Police’s management of
confrontations at public order events (POEs) and the
equipments used by PTU. Council Members also
seized the opportunity to discuss with frontline
officers to understand how they manage different
situations in POEs.
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Mr Adrian Yip Chun-to, Ir Prof Vincent Ho, Mr Barry Chin Chi-yung and Ms Ann Au Chor-kwan presented awards
to winners of the Complaints Prevention e-Newsletter Second Anniversary Cover Page Design Competition.
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Mr Larry Kwok Lam-kwong (Chairman), Mr Simon Ip Shing-hing, Ms Sandy Wong Hang-yee, Mr Arthur Luk Yee-
shun (SC), Miss Lisa Lau Man-man, Ir Edgar Kwan Chi-ping, Mr Barry Chin Chi-yung and Mr Clement Chan Kam-
wing attended the Police’s briefing on 1 July procession. The aim of the event was to help increase Members'’
understanding on how police officers would ensure public safety at public order events. Council Members also
exchanged views with the Police’s arrangements for the procession.
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Mr Larry Kwok Lam-kwong (Chairman) and 14 Members conducted on-site observation of 1 July procession. The
observation comprised two parts. Part One consisted of a detailed briefing at the Police command centre. Members
then proceeded to the event’s starting point in Victoria Park and continued to observe along the procession route.
The second part was to observe the procession at its finishing point on the northern side of Harcourt Road outside
the Central Government Offices.
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CAPOQ invited Mr Larry Kwok Lam-kwong (Chairman) and 11 Members to visit Mong Kok District to observe the Police’s
work in relation to vice activities. They observe licence checks and operations against vice establishments by the Police
as well as its joint operations with the Immigration Department. The aim of the event was to enhance participants’
understanding of Police work procedures which will help Members’ vetting of the complaints in this area.
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Miss Lisa Lau Man-man and Ir Prof Vincent Ho participated as members of the Adjudicating Panel for the Video
Dubbing Competition of Project LIGHTHOUSE II. Hosted by CAPO, the competition was designed to promote
frontline officers’ ability to handle conflicts with a view to minimize the chance of being complained against. Three
short videos depicting confrontational situations between police officers and members of the public were provided
for participants to develop new voiceovers and dialogue by demonstrating police officers’ composure and
professionalism.
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Mr Herman Hui Chung-shing was invited to attend
the semi-final presentation for the Service Quality
Award Scheme 2016 organised by the Police Force’s
Service Quality Wing, and served in the adjudicating
panel to appraise projects submitted by different
formations.

7 - = - _‘.-I.' ﬂ

FIMREETFN2ZZLZEBREERERLEFSELAESTE  REEERKFNTEIRER - BMELFER
R BNFETREMAL #EERERE  BREX  RESAREENRFERE - THEEHERERMNE
TERNMNEER - AR EMISEL -

Mr Larry Kwok Lam-kwong (Chairman) and 23 Members attended a networking luncheon with the Commissioner
of Police and other senior police officers to exchange views on handling of complaints against the Police. Mr Larry
Kwok said that both parties should perform their respective roles to uphold a transparent, efficient and reliable
Police complaints system. He also hoped that the Police would continue to adopt the IPCC’s recommended
improvement measures and further enhance complaint prevention efforts.
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Mr Larry Kwok Lam-kwong (Chairman) was invited to deliver the keynote speech at a luncheon at the Youth
Executives’ Committee of the Chinese General Chamber of Commerce. He exchanged views with Chamber members
on the topic “The functions and challenges faced by the IPCC".
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Mr Tony Tse Wai-chuen (Vice-Chairman) and eight IPCC Members met with representatives from the Society for
Community Organization to discuss the conditions of the Police detention facilities, as well as the treatment of
detainees at these facilities including rights for medical treatment. Salient points of the discussions were reported
to the Council to facilitate the vetting of complaint cases relating to police facilities.
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Ir Edgar Kwan Chi-ping and Mr Richard Ho Kam-wing met with delegates from the Independent Broad-Based Anti-
Corruption Commission Committee from Victoria. During the meeting, the IPCC introduced its functions and the
Hong Kong's two-tier police complaints system. Views on systems for monitoring complaints against police officers
in different jurisdictions were also exchanged.
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Open meetings

BEE e RERARRIT T OIS During the reporting period, the IPCC held four joint meetings with
ERANBE SR - RIERERAENEG CAPO. Part of the meetings was open to the public and the media
MHmRABRHEZS TIERRH - X to enhance transparency and understanding of the IPCC's work. At
RORBELAABD TRBREZEREHE meetings of this reporting period, the Police and the IPCC reported
BRah o EAFERNEE  EHNELE their progress of investigation and review complaints concerning the
BT AEBLESHERT AR NN Occupy Movement and the Mong Kok Riot. Furthermore, measures
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R T A e MR ER RS Police’s services were discussed.
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At the meeting, the Police briefly introduced the “Selected Traffic Enforcement
Priorities (STEP) 2016" to the IPCC with a view to help Members' review of
complaints concerning enforcement of traffic regulations. In addition, the
Police reported the progress of the working group in evaluating the
improvement measures for the handling of mentally incapacitated persons,
and explained to the IPCC the arrangements regarding public activity areas,
press areas and media liaison during the visit of Mr Zhang Dejiang, Chairman
of the Standing Committee of the National People’s Congress, to Hong Kong
in May 2016.
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At the meeting, the Police introduced the “Complaint Prevention Training for
New Recruits” to the IPCC. The aim of the training programme is to provide
guidelines for the newly employed front-line police officers to enhance their
confidence and professionalism in response to emergencies, so as to prevent
unnecessary complaints.
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The Police introduced the “Operation Breakthrough” project to the IPCC. The
aim of this project is to help the youth at risk through sports, so as to influence
them positively and reduce the chances of their committing criminal acts.
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At the meeting, Members of the IPCC followed up with the Police on a case
concerning a reporter who complained about being assulted by police officers
while covering the Mong Kok Riot. The IPCC urged CAPO to complete the
investigation and submit the investigation report for review as soon as possible.
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Since the IPCCO went into effect on 1 June 2009, the IPCC has
transformed from a “back-seat” reviewer to a more transparent and
forward-looking independent police complaints oversight body. Apart
from strengthening its engagement with the Police and stakeholders
regarding issues of public interest, it also continues to enhance external
communications to enhance the public’s understanding of Hong
Kong's police complaints system.

The IPCC releases its latest information to the public through the
media, official publications and website, the IPCC Channel on
YouTube and all kinds of leaflets.
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During the reporting period, a Chairman’s Column was added to the
IPCC website in which the IPCC's work is introduced through short
articles. The additional platform enables readers to understand the
IPCC’s vetting procedures, principles and viewpoints easily through
complaint cases endorsed by the IPCC. The articles are open for
reproduction by other media. The passages published during the
reporting period covered “Not Pursuable” complaints or “False”
complaints, as well as the IPCC's duties. For details, please visit the
IPCC website (http://www.ipcc.gov.hk).
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The IPCC releases the IPCC Newsletter on a regular basis to update
the public on the Council’s latest work, statistics of cases reviewed
and real complaint cases. The IPCC Newsletter is distributed to
stakeholders by post or email and uploaded to the IPCC website
(http://www.ipcc.gov.hk). During the reporting period, the IPCC
released two issues of the /PCC Newsletter, in July and December
2016 respectively. The cover stories featured the 2016 IPCC public
opinion survey results and an update on the IPCC's review of
complaints related to the Occupy Movement.

As stipulated in the IPCCO, the IPCC must submit to the Chief
Executive an annual report on the IPCC’s financial and overall work
status not later than six months after the end of the financial year.
The IPCC also publishes the annual report for public accountability.

In addition, the IPCC published the “10 Qs on the IPCC" booklet and
the Observers Scheme leaflet, which cover the IPCC’s origin and
functions, the two-tier police complaints system and the IPCC’s
vetting procedures in response to the common enquiries about the
IPCC.
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BRBER(EZS R NFEELIER To enhance transparency, the IPCC holds a press conference for
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A media briefing was held to launch the /PCC Newsletter issue no.19. During the briefing, Mr Larry Kwok
Lam-kwong (Chairman) presented highlights of the IPCC’s latest publicity initiatives. Dr Robert Chung Ting-yiu,
Director of the University of Hong Kong Public Opinion Programme (HKUPOP) was also invited to give an account
of the results of the public opinion survey 2016 comissioned by the IPCC. In addition, Mr Daniel Mui (Deputy
Secretary-General, Operations) explained a complaint case involving a mentally incapacitated person. Other
Members were also present for networking lunch with the media representatives.

Wy EREHEBNFEEE 2016/17 TIEHRE



Bl EREEREERREE SRR RI(ELEE 201516 TIERE) - BB TF - BMEEFEAE EME
REGERAINER (T8 BRI T ERH(EEF 201516 TERE) RE - TH(EEGRA) FEEMEET
2E - MIREREREESFE TFOBR LT - YERGESHRFITENERNBTZEE - Af0E
EMA—REETES  MEERRFEIR

On behalf of the IPCC, Hon Chan Kin-por (Vice-Chairman) submitted the /PCC Report 2015/16 to the Legislative
Council. Mr Larry Kwok Lam-kwong (Chairman), accompanied by Mr Richard Yu (Secretary-General) and Mr Daniel
Mui (Deputy Secretary-General, Operations), hosted a media briefing and luncheon to launch the report and /PCC
Newsletter issue no. 20. They presented a yearly overview and the statistics of the IPCC's work in the past financial
year, and updated the progress of the IPCC’s monitoring work on the complaint cases arising from the Occupy
Movement. Other Members were also present for networking lunch with the media representatives.

BIRSRh

Media interviews

EZeREBEBEEFBREH - By conducting media interviews and answering enquiries, the IPCC
mMmRMBEESHEERTIE - RE representatives introduce the IPCC’s function and work to the public.
BN - SEMEEE - KBEBAIWERK During the reporting period, Mr Larry Kwok Lam-kwong (Chairman),
BB EWERS  HREXT ZMEELE Mr Ricky Chu (former Secretary-General) and Mr Richard Yu
ME BREREERR 25K & (Secretary-General) were interviewed by various media, including
BEAEEC(EREE EEl PHONE) 5 ° ﬁﬁ South China Morning Post, Sing Tao Daily, and RTHK programme

.

SSWME BN e AT — NG FFELR “Open Line Open View"”. Mr Kwok also responded to questions
BITHE R 2 351% - Eﬂ%@ﬁ’g{%ﬁ%}ﬁuﬁ o from the media after each joint meeting between the IPCC and
CAPO.
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Corporate image

EEXBREHRE
LRERBE

Public opinion survey
conducted by HKUPOP

ETea N ABEATERBERE

IRABEHRAE  NTHRAR
HELZeNRME  MEEMEETR
BB - HE LSRG 7RG RBEE
HERERNAR  AEEFRET
(BEEERD)E8K(1)e) B THIETE
Bet— (MR ARYHEEENACHR
EA

REENARBERBEERESR AR

HEZTENEL  BRIMNEELESF
BRI - AERSF= A HABEHE

HWixEESEENET - 55 T 1,010
BRFEAN - ANERDELHEZLESHE
SREIEE  hEFEA=FEDE -
R EHEEENE O FE (BIEER
ZEEMNBESL)  BEFENRERS
B RELEAZESFN19EESE -
s ETRmEENS THEAFH
56.159 FAHZESFH60.5% °

AEEFAEESE ERRBERER
BEAFVER] NIRRT - XGEHE
TEm BRI AT TS E
BES - DRIA R MOKF ARRE
BT RIE MESLEF LR
BEDE - ERTARE|RTBRE M
FH - BERDEHEMERFNER
LB RRL - B5F 0 EARKE

FRBELESRERRIEAERNT

B ERLEHEIBIRFEZEE 2016/17 TIERS

SnhEHEEFNHED

Respondents’ confidence in the IPCC D 73t Cniittzn

B —f% Half-half

W J2A{=0 Not confident

B “RAE Don't Know

B BRI EEEEEEL ?
Q : Overall speaking, are you confident in the IPCC?

454 iR 10%

2017 Net confidence

fE0FE : 5%

2016 Net confidence

Since the IPCC became an independent statutory body, the IPCC has
conducted six public opinion surveys to understand the public
awareness of and satisfaction with the IPCC, as well as the overall
perception of the IPCC’s image. The survey results help the IPCC to
assess and map out the direction for its promotion and communication
efforts in order to effectively discharge its statutory function — “to
promote public awareness of the role of the Council” under section
8(1)(e) of the IPCCO.

This year's survey results show improvement in the areas of public
confidence in, perception of and satisfaction with the IPCC. The
survey was conducted through telephone interviews on a random
sampling basis in early March 2017 and 1,010 adults were
interviewed. 55% of the respondents felt positive about the IPCC’s
image, an increase of 3 percentage points over that of previous year.
The respondents’ net confidence in the IPCC (i.e. the percentage of
positive minus that of negative) rose significantly from 5 percentage
points last year to 19 percentage points this year. The satisfaction
rating increased from last year's 56.1 to this year's 60.5.

As for the indicators of the IPCC’s work concerning “monitoring and
reviewing complaint cases”, the respondents generally gave a higher
rating on the IPCC’'s “independence” and “impartiality”, of which
50% and 45% believed that the IPCC was independent and impartial
respectively. Both ratings increased by 5 percentage points from that
of last year. With regard to “efficiency” and “transparency”, though
views on these two indicators used to be more polarised, the
divergence was significantly narrowed this year. The percentage of
respondents who opined the IPCC being not efficient or not
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transparent has dropped by 9 percentage points and 8 percentage
points respectively.

In view of the survey results for the past few years, the IPCC has
strived to enhance the vetting process. Earlier this year, several
requests have been raised to CAPO in order to expedite the vetting
procedures. First of all, the IPCC requested CAPO to complete
investigation within four months after receiving the complaint; and
submit investigation reports to the IPCC within six months. Secondly,
CAPO should provide the IPCC with all relevant files and documents
when submitting the investigation reports in order to minimize
unnecessary delay. Thirdly, CAPO should endeavor to respond to
Queries raised by the IPCC within four weeks. In addition, the
frequency of working level meetings with CAPO has been increased
from once every three months to once every two months to improve
the efficiency for case handling. The Council will also strive to endorse
every investigation report within six months after receiving it.

With respect to transparency, the IPCC would not disclose any details
or make any comments on a complaint before the vetting process is
completed in order to maintain impartiality during case vetting and
to comply with confidential obligation. This inevitably affects the
public perception of the IPCC’s transparency. In this regard, the IPCC
has been stepping up efforts in sharing endorsed cases through the
IPCC Newsletter and online channels to enable public understanding
of actual work process, as well as the comprehensiveness and serious
manner undertook by the IPCC in case vetting.

As in previous years, the latest survey results show that younger
respondents tend to have more negative perception about the IPCC.
Therefore, the IPCC launched a school pilot programme last September
reaching out to secondary and primary students to enable a proper
understanding of the IPCC’s role and functions. The IPCC Members
and Secretariat staff jointly visited the schools, and through case
sharing, the principles for vetting cases, values of the IPCC, the two-
tier police complaints system and the rights and responsibilities
involved in a complainant were deliberated with students. The school
pilot programme was well received by both teachers and students, and
the IPCC will continue to expand its efforts in this year.

The public opinion survey commissioned by the IPCC and conducted
by HKUPOP is available at HKUPOP's website (http://www.hkupop.
hku.hk/english/report/ipcc2017/index.html).

Report 2016/17 The Independent Police Complaints Council

91






8 6 = CHAPTER 6

ARG
Organisational
structure



RE Chapter 6 4% 48 Organisational structure

94

ZEE
The Council
ETHRRE(EE

f
MOREWE - EFE - =1
2EHBITBREREZRME - 4

[1] m8

ESD DR The IPCC is an independent statutory body established under the
VEIFFNEZE IPCCO. The Chairman, three Vice-Chairmen and Members are all
REEAIRNEE R appointed by the Chief Executive. The membership of the IPCC during

BT this reporting period is as follows:
X & Chairman f£H#3 Appointment

ZBHRELRED - SBS » JP
Mr Larry KWOK Lam-kwong, SBS, JP

20146 A1 H#E
Since 1 June 2014

BIERE Vice-Chairmen

PR ZES - GBS * JP BERFEARZARER
Hon CHAN Kin-por, GBS, JP Serious Complaints Committee Chairman

SREEEZHES - SBS + JP
Hon Chris CHEUNG Wah-fung, SBS, JP

H1E42 R =RD - BBS
Mr Tony TSE Wai-chuen, BBS

f£H#A Appointment

201351 A1 A
Since 1 January 2013

20151 A1 8
Since 1 January 2015

20151 A1 H#E
Since 1 January 2015

& B Members
BERG R ARED - JP EEZEETF (22016512 A)
. . . Management Committee Chairman
Mr Simon IP Shing-hing, JP (Till Dec 2016)
N BERRFHAZERTR
EIRHERD (2201611 8)
Ms Mary WONG Tak-lan Operations Advisory Committee Chairman
(Till Nov 2016)
B F 35 8 A2 A FEREBRBEEF (H201742 A)
. Legal Committee Chairman
Mr John YAN Mang-yee, SC (Since Feb 2017)
2%+ - BBS * MH ' JP
ez EEKERAEZERLRE

Miss Lisa LAU Man-man,

Publicity and Survey Committee Chairman

BBS, MH, JP
SFRERAZET © SBS - MH - JP ERETHNEARLR
Mr Herman HUI Chung_Shmg' Operations Advisory Committee Chairman
SBS, MH, JP (Since Nov 2016)
RESA S TA2HT - P EEZEREF (H2017F1 Ae)
. Management Committee Chairman
Ir Edgar KWAN Chi-ping, JP (Since Jan 2017)

Wy EREHEBNFEEE 2016/17 TIEHRE

f£HA Appointment

200141 A1HZE2016%12A31H
From 1 January 2011 to
31 December 2016

201141 A1HZE2016%12A31H
From 1 January 2011 to
31 December 2016

2012F10 A1 HiE
Since 1 October 2012

201441 A1 AR
Since 1 January 2014

201541 A1 AR
Since 1 January 2015

20151 A1 8%
Since 1 January 2015



Z B Members

5 BB K26

Mr Lawrence MA Yan-kwok

2 E 2B 7EAD
Ms Noeline LAU Yuk-kuen

REEZREB
Hon Kenneth LEUNG Kai-cheong

FEZEL
Dr Carol MA Hok-ka

=EEAGERD - JP
Ms Sandy WONG Hang-yee, JP

e e =
Bae=mE

Dr Hon Helena WONG Pik-wan

HEIREDSTAE - BBS * MH » JP
Mr Adrian YIP Chun-to, BBS, MH, JP

MEIZSE A - BBS ¢ JP
Mr Clement TAO Kwok-lau, BBS, JP

FRiZ58 B4 - BBS * JP
Dr Eugene CHAN Kin-keung, BBS, JP

Al BRI - THZRM
Ir Prof Vincent HO

BERR{S & 7R A1EAD - BBS
Mr Arthur LUK Yee-shun, BBS, SC

HEYERZEE  MH - JP
Ms Ann SO Lai-chun, MH, JP

EPEREEH T+ - BBS * MH - OSt)  JP
Dr Eric CHENG Kam-chung, BBS, MH, OStJ, JP

(CIFES=Fali
Mr Richard HO Kam-wing

ERETE
Mr Peter YAN King-shun

BB
Mr Barry CHIN Chi-yung

f£H#3 Appointment

20106 A1 BE20165H31H
From 1 June 2010 to 31 May 2016

20111 A1HZE2016%12A31H
From 1 January 2011 to
31 December 2016

200141 A1HZE2016%F12A31H
From 1 January 2011 to
31 December 2016

20111 A1HZE2016F 12 A31H
From 1 January 2011 to
31 December 2016

20111 A1HZ=2016F 12 A31H
From 1 January 2011 to
31 December 2016

20111 A1HZE2016F12A31H
From 1 January 2011 to
31 December 2016

20111 A1HZE2016F12A31H
From 1 January 2011 to
31 December 2016

2012410 A1 HiE
Since 1 October 2012

201351 A1 A
Since 1 January 2013

201351 A1 HiE
Since 1 January 2013

2013 1 A1 HE
Since 1 January 2013

201441 A1 AR
Since 1 January 2014

201541 H1HEE
Since 1 January 2015

20151 A1 8
Since 1 January 2015

20151 A 1HE2016F 12 A31H
From 1 January 2015 to
31 December 2016

201641 A1 AR
Since 1 January 2016
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BYERENRERFEES

Z B Members

FEIEE R
Mr José-Antonio MAURELLET, SC

BREPECEFTAM
Mr Clement CHAN Kam-wing

BBk &2 5E 4
Mr Wilson KWONG Wing-tsuen

B 1845 4+
Ms Ann AU Chor-kwan

Mr Alex CHU Wing-yiu

B R EIRNEAD
Mr Douglas LAM Tak-yip, SC

TR AR
Miss Sylvia LEE Hiu-wah

ZR{EHE - BBS ' MH - JP
Dr David LEE Ka-yan, BBS, MH, JP

TREE1EED  MH » P
Ms Melissa Kaye PANG, MH, JP

HEEHE
Prof Martin WONG Chi-sang

BEBRL P
Mr Johnny YU Wah-yung, JP

2016/17 TEfhE

f£H#A Appointment

201641 A1 AR
Since 1 January 2016

20166 A1 HiE
Since 1 June 2016

201646 A1 H#E
Since 1 June 2016

201741 A1 A
Since 1 January 2017

20171 A1 8#E
Since 1 January 2017

201751 A1 AR
Since 1 January 2017

20171 A1 A
Since 1 January 2017

20171 A1 8
Since 1 January 2017

201751 A1 AR
Since 1 January 2017

201751 A1 B
Since 1 January 2017

20171 A1 HEE
Since 1 January 2017

201751 A1 AR
Since 1 January 2017



BEZeNBeRHELE R - 2016974 5 £20174F3 A
. . Period: April 2016 to March 2017
IPCC Members’ attendance at in-house meetings

BRI RITNESE AEEELE The IPCC holds in-house meetings every quarter, for the full Council
FMEBEEEMARIIE - ERE to discuss internal matters. Special in-house meeting would be held
eARFNGEE% - REFARNEZE @ when necessary. During this reporting period, three additional special
BINEHR T ZRFRIABEE - in-house meetings were held.

2016 2017

4819H 6H6H 7H25H9A12H 118 1H 12HA5H 3A17H #&
19APR 6JUN 25JUL 12SEP 1NOV 5DEC 17 MAR Total

£ & Chairman

SPHRERAD - SBS -
Mr Larry KWOK Lam kwong, SBS, JP

BIZEE Vice-Chairmen
PRfEE %S * GBS ' JP

Hon CHAN Kin-por, GBS, JP ¢ ¢ . 14 . o . 6/7
SREEIEZES - SBS + JP

Hon Chris CHEUNG Wah-fung, SBS, P N N ¢ © © © ¢ 3/7
H{ERI=RD - BBS

Mr Tony TSE Wai-chuen, BBS © ¢ © ¢ ¢ ¢ . 5/7
&8 Members

HEREERD - P (2201612 A31H)

Mr Simon IP Shing-hing, JP 2 * * * 2 * N/A 6/6

(Till 31 Dec 2016)

== (22016512 A318)
Ms Mary WONG Tak-lan & * * 2 * * N/A 5/6
(Till 31 Dec 2016)

BAmEEFAER

Mr John YAN Mang-yee, SC R . o ¢ & N N 37
R332 % 4 BBS * MH -+ JP

Miss Lisa LAU Man-man, BBS, MH, JP ¢ 4 ¢ ¢ © i ¢ &
FFoRER2AM - SBS * MH - JP

Mr Herman HUI Chung-shing, <& 2 * * 2 * * 6/7
SBS, MH, JP

2554 Y2 =l ’

BayaF Ti26M - JP . . o o . o . af7

Ir Edgar KWAN Chi-ping, JP

BB ARA (£201655H8318)
Mr Lawrence MA Yan-kwok * N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A 11
(Till 31 May 2016)

2| F 454260 (220164512 A31H)
Ms Noeline LAU Yuk-kuen * ¢ & ¢ & ¢ N/A 4/6
(Till 31 Dec 2016)
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2016 2017

4819H 6H6H 7B25H9A12H 1181H 12B5H 3A17H #H
19APR 6JUN 25JUL 12SEP 1NOV 5DEC 17 MAR Total

&R Members

R#EEFE (£20165F12A31H)
Hon Kenneth LEUNG Kai-cheong * * & 4 L 2 * N/A 5/6
(Till 31 Dec 2016)

EESE+ (£2016512831H)

Dr Carol MA Hok-ka (Till 31 Dec 2016) ¢ ¢ ¢ ¢ © ¢ WA 4/6

=EIREEAT - P (22016512 A31H)
Ms Sandy WONG Hang-yee, JP * * * * 2 * N/A 6/6
(Till 31 Dec 2016)

BHEEES (£20165128318)
Dr Hon Helena WONG Pik-wan * 2 O L 2 & O N/A 3/6
(Till 31 Dec 2016)

HIREPSTAE » BBS * MH » JP
(2201612 8318)

Mr Adrian YIP Chun-to, BBS, MH, JP
(Till 31 Dec 2016)

4 * & < <& & N/A 2/6

M BIZESE A - BBS ¢ JP

Mr Clement TAO Kwok-lau, BBS, JP d 4 ¢ © ¢ ¢ ¢ 6/7

PRiESREEA - BBS © JP

Dr Eugene CHAN Kin-keung, BBS, JP © i ¢ ¢ © ¢ ¢ 5/

It EEHOR - Tizhm

Ir Prof Vincent HO o ¢ * * <& <& * 477

PEBR{S B R AEED © BBS

Mr Arthur LUK Yee-shun, BBS, SC ¢ ) ¢ ¢ i g © >/

BEE@ZEE  MH ' P

Ms Ann SO Lai-chun, MH, JP © ¢ . 14 o . . 5/7

EREREEE L - BBS * MH » OSt) * JP
Dr Eric CHENG Kam-chung, BBS, MH, 2 * * * & O * 5/7
OStJ, JP

ISR SR & 5TRD
Mr Richard HO Kam-wing W ) > N 3 % \/ el
TS2E%4E (E2016F12 831 H)
Mr Peter YAN King-shun <& & & <& * * N/A 2/6
(Till 31 Dec 2016)

5 EEAD
Mr Barry CHIN Chi-yung

FLIEE R ANEAD
Mr José-Antonio MAURELLET, SC

* 4 * 4 <& 4 4 6/7

<& < & 4 <& L 4 4 3/7

W ERTHEERHFEREE 201617 TIERSE



& H Members

2016

2017

48 19H 6H6H 7B25H9A12H 1181H 12B5H 3A17H #H

AN

6 JUN

25 JUL

12 SEP

1 NOV

5 DEC

17 MAR Total

PREFESZ TR (20165F 6 A 1 HitR)
Mr Clement CHAN Kam-wing
(Since 1 Jun 2016)

Eox#zkLE (2016F6 A1 HE)
Mr Wilson KWONG Wing-tsuen
(Since 1 Jun 2016)

BS54+ (2017461 A 1 Bi#e)
Ms Ann AU Chor-kwan
(Since 1 Jan 2017)

KoxsE (2017F1A18#8)
Mr Alex CHU Wing-yiu
(Since 1 Jan 2017)

ERFERAEZE (2017F1 A1 8#2)
Mr Douglas LAM Tak-yip, SC
(Since 1 Jan 2017)

ZREEE KRR (2017451 A1 HE)
Miss Sylvia LEE Hiu-wah
(Since 1 Jan 2017)

ASR{TBEH - BBS * MH * JP
(201741 A1 8#)

Dr David LEE Ka-yan, BBS, MH, JP
(Since 1 Jan 2017)

TRAE2E0 0 MH - JP
(201741 A 1 B#e)

Ms Melissa Kaye PANG, MH, JP
(Since 1 Jan 2017)

Rikzs4+ (201741 A1 B#E)
Ms Shalini Shivan SUJANANI
(Since 1 Jan 2017)

BEEHE (2017F1 A1 8#)
Prof Martin WONG Chi-sang
(Since 1 Jan 2017)

BESBLE P (2017F1A18RB)
Mr Johnny YU Wah-yung, JP
(Since 1 Jan 2017)

& 1% Attended

RIS & In-house meeting

N/A

N/A

N/A

N/A

N/A

N/A

N/A

N/A

N/A

N/A

N/A

< k% Did not attend

RIS E % Special in-house meeting

N/A

N/A

N/A

N/A

N/A

N/A

N/A

N/A

N/A

N/A

N/A

N/A

N/A

N/A

N/A

N/A

N/A

N/A

N/A

N/A

N/A

N/A

N/A

N/A

N/A

N/A

N/A

N/A

N/A

N/A

N/A

N/A

N/A

N/A

N/A

N/A

N/A

N/A

N/A

N/A

N/A

N/A

N/A

N/A

N/A

N/A N2 &6 B Not a Member of the meeting
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B RAR R EIRN R RS B 201644 AE 201753

L . Date: April 2016 to March 2017
IPCC Members’ attendance at joint IPCC/CAPO meetings

2016 2017

6HA23H 10A3H 12HA19H 3A21H e
23 JUN 30CT 19 DEC 21 MAR Total

EE Chairman

f/lﬁrﬂfa}%rffﬁgvbffa;iwong, SBS, JP ¢ ¢ ¢ ¢ v
BIEE Vice-Chairmen

ai%mfﬁfs%HsgliG J\/l:;/ah-fung, SBS, JP ¢ ¢ - ¢ 2
ﬁf’iﬁ;ﬁ\q%s@v,af?suen, BBS ¢ ¢ ¢ ¢ v
N B
E&ﬁfﬁf \ifl\jl(ﬁaafg-yee, SC - ¢ - ¢ o
Viss Lia LAU Man-man, B85, MH, B B
:Ar%—;ﬁ%ﬁagrﬂj HSIBEhu'\r?:—shfrF:g SBS, MH, JP ¢ ¢ ¢ ¢ A
EaéiiiﬁiﬁN,éEi-ping, JP ¢ ¢ ¢ ¢ e
%Jsi;\lﬁfgfngem L(A% ZY?J]k?kTeLZ('ﬁIﬁB] 1ED)ec 2016) ¢ ¢ ¢ . "
:Jéoi:% iﬁiéﬁéﬁg Zifh):]o?g ‘?T?II 31 Dec 2016) = © ¢ e 13
Drég:g%th(iii?(ﬁlg 1HDic1: ZEO)1 6) ¢ N - " "
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2016 2017

6A23H 10A3H 12A19H 3A21H
23 JUN 3 0CT 19 DEC 21 MAR

Z&HR Members

et I N
ﬁ%igﬁfer:f V%/%l\IGGi:kz-v)vqa?(Tﬁl)m Dec 2016) ¢ ¢ ¢ A 33
e, N c B ¢ | -
Er%fe/:]it :F,ABCB)SK;/JCF;k-Iau, BBS, JP - ¢ ¢ ¢ N
ﬁ%jfjffCHiis K‘irJWF—)keung, BBS, JP ¢ ¢ ¢ ¢ o/
ﬁﬁfﬁ%ic,ﬁ I\J/IPH, JP ¢ ¢ ¢ ¢ v
ﬁrﬁ %th%riliﬂz) Kam-wing ¢ ¢ ¢ N N
IT\?/IEifj;E Y%Alflfiigjsii1($il)lﬂ3311 Iiz 2016) - N - v s
ﬁiﬁfiﬂm Chi-yung - ¢ ¢ N 2
K/I:E?Efi%é%zftﬁjiﬁlTAAU RELLET, SC - N - N o
ﬁf %C%;geia(mi IE|2A(I)\I1 ijn?v)\j;gE(lsﬁc)e 1 Jun 2016) - ¢ ¢ N 2
ﬁ:&%ﬁ?&g&mg;ﬁfﬂsmce 1 Jun 2016) ¢ ¢ ¢ ¢ v
gi&?nﬁ A% ézh(()J:j(vTaL )(E]SiLS.eﬁTEian 2017) A A e ¢ 1
ﬁrﬁ%ﬁ%é %/\(/)i1n7gfit11 Eir:cil ‘F}an 2017) A A A ¢ V1
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6A23H

23 JUN

2016

10A83H
3 OCT

12A19H
19 DEC

Hw
Total

EEfRE AR AR (201751 A1 HR)
Mr Douglas LAM Tak-yip, SC (Since 1 Jan 2017)

ZeREEEA2AR (201741 B 1 B#E)
Miss Sylvia LEE Hiu-wah (Since 1 Jan 2017)

2S84 BBS ° MH » JP (201741 A1 H#E)
Dr David LEE Ka-yan, BBS, MH, JP (Since 1 Jan 2017)

TEEEERD c MH - JP (201741 A1 HiR)
Ms Melissa Kaye PANG, MH, JP (Since 1 Jan 2017)

RikL4+ (201751 81 Bi#E)
Ms Shalini Shivan SUJANANI (Since 1 Jan 2017)

BEEHE (201751 A1 8#8)
Prof Martin WONG Chi-sang (Since 1 Jan 2017)

BEBSLAL - P (20174F1 A1 H#E)
Mr Johnny YU Wah-yung, JP (Since 1 Jan 2017)

@ HJE Attended < % Did not attend

BUERLEHEEERHFEZES 2016/17 TIERE

N/A

N/A

N/A

N/A

N/A

N/A

N/A

N/A 2K B Not a Member of the meeting

N/A

N/A

N/A

N/A

N/A

N/A

N/A

N/A

N/A

N/A

N/A

N/A

N/A

N/A

01

11

11

0N

0/1
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Members of the IPCC are divided into four groups to examine the
investigation reports submitted by CAPO. The IPCC has also set up
five Committees, to help perform its functions more efficiently.

The terms of reference and members of the five Committees are as
follows:

BRERHRERZRRE

Serious Complaints Committee

B E

(@) FIEER - BAREEXZES
ERNBRERER

(b) WIFEMGIE B RBEERFERD
Kipligh

(0 MEEEFESFINENEXRE
RS - BB REERFE

(d) BZEERFERNFAEER
NACESEE eafet

(@) RELZEERREEWLHEERE
ERFEREENOEMEER  H#

EEEEE -

Terms of reference

(a) To determine the criteria of serious cases that should come
under the monitoring of the Committee;

(b) To examine and determine special procedures for
monitoring serious complaints;

(c) To examine the need to seek outside professional advice

or service to facilitate the scrutiny of complaint cases;

(d) To examine the findings of serious complaint cases after
investigation has been completed, and put forward
recommendations to the Chairman;

(e) To put forward any issues in relation to the monitoring of
serious complaint cases for the IPCC’s deliberation, as the

Committee deems appropriate.
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Serious Complaints Committee
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H{E# R ERD - BBS
HRKEER - P (F2016F12H)
=EWEM (F2016F12H)
| 2% B AR RRM
2332t BBS * MH + JP
FFRENTREM - SBS * MH ¢ JP
BRBIAZR (£2016F5H)
ZIRBEM (22016F12H)
HEIRERM - P (F2016F12H)
mEEZEE (F2016F12H)
EIREPSLE - BBS  MH » JP
(£2016F 12 4)
M BIZES A4 - BBS ¢ JP
PREREE A - BBS + JP
(Z2017¢1A4)
At GEA - TI2Am
BEBR{E & R K FERM - BBS
#HEYRZEE ° MH © JP
E[§7$818+ - BBS ° MH » OSt) » JP
(2017 F 1 H#E)
PREFERSEE (2016 F 7 A#E)
BESLZ L (20174 1 A#E)
FREEEAEAM (2017 1 H#E)
FR{CEL - BBS MH » JP
(2017 F 1 H#E)
BEAHE (20179F 1 A#E)
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Membership

Chairman
Hon CHAN Kin-por, GBS, JP

Members
Hon Chris CHEUNG Wah-fung, SBS, JP
Mr Tony TSE Wai-chuen, BBS
Mr Simon IP Shing-hing, JP  (Till Dec 2016)
Ms Mary WONG Tak-lan  (Till Dec 2016)
Mr John YAN Mang-yee, SC
Miss Lisa LAU Man-man, BBS, MH, JP
Mr Herman HUI Chung-shing, SBS, MH, JP
Mr Lawrence MA Yan-kwok  (Till May 2016)
Ms Noeline LAU Yuk-kuen (Till Dec 2016)
Ms Sandy WONG Hang-yee, JP  (Till Dec 2016)
Dr Hon Helena WONG Pik-wan  (Till Dec 2016)
Mr Adrian YIP Chun-to, BBS, MH, JP
(Till Dec 2016)
Mr Clement TAO Kwok-lau, BBS, JP
Dr Eugene CHAN Kin-keung, BBS, JP
(Till Jan 2017)
Ir Prof Vincent HO
Mr Arthur LUK Yee-shun, BBS, SC
Ms Ann SO Lai-chun, MH, JP
Dr Eric CHENG Kam-chung, BBS, MH, OStJ, JP
(Since Jan 2017)
Mr Clement CHAN Kam-wing  (Since Jul 2016)
Ms Ann AU Chor-kwan  (Since Jan 2017)
Miss Sylvia LEE Hiu-wah  (Since Jan 2017)
Dr David LEE Ka-yan, BBS, MH, JP
(Since Jan 2017)
Prof WONG Chi-sang (Since Jan 2017)
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HHERBIEED - BBS (20174 1 AAE)
=EBEE (Z22016F124)
HFEBARER (£2016F5H)
=R P (2201612 4)
EIRESAE - BBS ° MH - JP
(£20164F 12 4)
FEZES A - BBS ¢ JP
Al EEER « TH2AM
EfER4EH 1 - BBS ° MH » OSt) » JP
EFE Sl
ER=ERE (E2016F124)
BxEEE (2016 F8 AfE)
TEREKREAD (2017F2 A#)
TRAEFEAD - MH - JP
(201742 Fi#E)

Terms of reference

(@) To oversee major areas of work of the Secretariat;
(b) To consider and approve:

e Any changes to the annual budget;

e The appointment, interdiction from duty, and
termination of employment of employees at or below
Senior Vetting Officer/Senior Manager ranks;

e Key administrative matters that affect the service of
the IPCC;

* Proposed new contracts with estimated value at or
above HK$50,000 or covering a new area of activity,
with the exception of those contracts or activities
that come under the purview of the Publicity and
Survey Committee;

(c) To put forward any administrative or management issues
for the IPCC’s deliberation as the Committee deems
appropriate.

Membership

Chairman
Mr Simon IP Shing-hing, JP (Till Dec 2016)
Ir Edgar KWAN Chi-ping, JP  (Since Jan 2017)

Members
Mr Larry KWOK Lam-kwong, SBS, JP
Mr Tony TSE Wai-chuen, BBS  (Since Jan 2017)
Ms Mary WONG Tak-lan  (Till Dec 2016)
Mr Lawrence MA Yan-kwok  (Till May 2016)
Ms Sandy WONG Hang-yee, JP  (Till Dec 2016)
Mr Adrian YIP Chun-to, BBS, MH, JP

(Till Dec 2016)
Mr Clement TAO Kwok-lau, BBS, JP
Ir Prof Vincent HO
Dr Eric CHENG Kam-chung, BBS, MH, OStJ, JP
Mr Richard HO Kam-wing
Mr Peter YAN King-shun  (Till Dec 2016)
Mr Wilson KWONG Wing-tsuen (Since Aug 2016)
Miss Sylvia LEE Hiu-wah  (Since Feb 2017)
Ms Melissa Kaye PANG, MH, JP

(Since Feb 2017)
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Publicity and Survey Committee
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Terms of reference

(@) To consider measures that could enhance the image and

public understanding of the IPCC;

(b) To consider and approve publicity-related activities which

have been budgeted for, including:

e (Content and design of publicity materials, such as
annual reports, website, videos, publications and

other promotional materials;
e launching of publicity activities;

e Selection and commissioning of contractors to assist

in such projects;

(0 To consider and approve the launching of surveys that have
been budgeted for, and the selection and commissioning of

contractors to assist in such projects;

(d) To monitor the progress and quality of the projects in

(b) and (0);

(e) To consider and advise on an annual publicity plan for the

IPCC's consideration;

(f)  To put forward any publicity-related issues for the IPCC's
deliberation as the Committee deems appropriate.

Membership

Chairman
Miss Lisa LAU Man-man, BBS, MH, JP

Members
Dr Carol MA Hok-ka (Till Dec 2016)
Ms Sandy WONG Hang-yee, JP  (Till Dec 2016)
Mr Adrian YIP Chun-to, BBS, MH, JP
(Till Dec 2016)
Mr Clement TAO Kwok-lau, BBS, JP
Dr Eugene CHAN Kin-keung, BBS, JP
Ir Prof Vincent HO
Ms Ann SO Lai-chun, MH, JP
Dr Eric CHENG Kam-chung, BBS, MH, OStJ, JP
Mr Clement CHAN Kam-wing  (Since Jul 2016)
Mr Alex CHU Wing-yiu (Since Jan 2017)
Mr Johnny YU Wah-yung, JP  (Since Jan 2017)



BERIEFERZERE

Operations Advisory Committee
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Terms of reference

(a)

To advise the Secretariat on general issues and matters of
significant importance arising from the scrutiny and
examination of Reportable Complaints (RC), Notifiable
Complaints (NC) categorisation and cases resolved by
Expression of Dissatisfaction Mechanism (EDM) as well as
monitoring actions on post endorsement issues, and,
where it deems appropriate, make recommendations for
the IPCC’s consideration;

To co-ordinate Working Level Meetings (WLM) with CAPO
and nominate IPCC Members to chair the WLM,;

Upon review, observations or report of the Secretariat, to
advise on the existing police complaint process
and, where appropriate and necessary, make
recommendations to streamline the existing workflows
for complaint handling, from the intake to disposal of
complaints, with a view to further improving the efficiency
and effectiveness of the IPCC case examination process;
and to this end it will be consulted by the Secretariat on
the review of the IPCC Case Examination Manual, police
manuals, orders, standing procedures, instructions or
guidelines which are related to complaints or complaints
handling; and, where it deems appropriate, make
recommendations for the IPCC's consideration;

To advise the Secretariat on research projects and studies
to be undertaken by the Secretariat in relation to the work
of IPCC, and, where it deems appropriate, make

recommendations for the IPCC’s consideration.
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Membership

Chairman

Ms Mary WONG Tak-lan  (Till Nov 2016)

Mr Herman HUI Chung-shing, SBS, MH, JP
(Since Nov 2016)

Members
Mr Simon IP Shing-hing, JP (Till Dec 20176)
Mr John YAN Mang-yee, SC  (Till Jan 2017)
Miss Lisa LAU Man-man, BBS, MH, JP
Mr Lawrence MA Yan-kwok (Till May 2016)
Ms Noeline LAU Yuk-kuen (Till Dec 2016)
Dr Carol MA Hok-ka (Till Dec 2016)
Ms Sandy WONG Hang-yee, JP  (Till Dec 2016)
Mr Clement TAO Kwok-lau, BBS, JP
Dr Eugene CHAN Kin-keung, BBS, JP
(Till Jan 2017)
Mr Arthur LUK Yee-shun, BBS, SC
(Since Feb 2017)
Dr Eric CHENG Kam-chung, BBS, MH, OStJ, JP
(Till Feb 2017)
Mr Clement CHAN Kam-wing (Since Jul 2016)

Mr Wilson KWONG Wing-tsuen (Since Feb 2017)

Ms Ann AU Chor-kwan (Since Feb 2017)
Prof WONG Chi-sang (Since Feb 2017)
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Legal Committee
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Legal Committee is a new committee that was set up during
this reporting period.

Terms of reference

Legal Committee is to comment and express views on the

following as may be required by the Council or Secretariat from

time to time.

(@) Legal issues arising from the examination of complaint
cases;

(b) Interpretation of the IPCCO and the IPCC’s internal rules
and regulations;

(©) Legal research arising from or incidental to the Council’s
work;

(d) Legal issues arising from the operation and/or
administration of the Council; and

(e) Any other legal issues related or incidental to the Council’s
work.

Legal Committee may require the Secretariat to assist in

carrying out the above.

Membership

Chairman
Mr John YAN Mang-yee, SC

Members

Mr Herman HUI Chung-shing, SBS, MH, JP
Mr José-Antonio MAURELLET, SC

Mr Douglas LAM Tak-yip, SC

Miss Sylvia LEE Hiu-wah

Ms Melissa Kaye PANG, MH, JP
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Observers
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Under the Observers Scheme, the Secretary for Security may appoint
persons deemed fit as IPCC Observers, to assist the Council in
observing the manner in which CAPO handles and investigates
Reportable Complaints. The following is a list of Observers in the
current reporting period:

BRAEE
1 BRI 5 22+
2 HMEELAE
3 EXMELRA BBS MH P
4 BREZE - MH
5 BRIXE S
6  PRERZESLAE
7 BRIXRELE
8 MRREXE
9  REMEHE L
10 [EZmshkAE
& 11 BEEE&E
12 BRESK4E
13 EETIFEL
¢ 14 HERELt
& 15 ZEAKELT - MH
16 EARMESE - MH
17  EAELE - MH
18 RIEFELAE
19 REEXE
20 REIEELA
21 KIEEKRAE - MH
22 RRRZL
23 HLEL&E
24 BOKHEHE
25 HEEIZE%4& - BBS 0 P
26 SREHEXZT  MH
27  BEMEAE - MH

BUERLHEEERHFEZES 2016/17 TIERE

Name of Observers

Ms AU Chor-kwan

Mr BOU Shing-ip

Mr Daniel CHAM Ka-hung, BBS, MH, JP
Ms CHAN Hang, MH

Mr Patrick CHAN Ka-chun

Mr CHAN Ming-wah

Mr Haydn CHAN Mou-keung

Mr Tony CHAN Tung-ngok

Dr CHAN Yuk-kit

Mr Calvin CHAU

Mr Barry CHIN Chi-yung

Mr Gordon CHIN Shing-hoi

Dr Gary CHENG Faat-ting

Ms Hattie CHENG Kin-hei

Dr Edwin CHENG Kwok-kit, MH
Mr Mathew CHENG Muk-lam, MH
Mr Edwin CHENG Shing-lung, MH
Mr Charles CHEUNG Cheuk-yiu
Mr Human CHEUNG

Mr CHEUNG Kwok-wai

Mr Thomas CHEUNG Tsun-yung, MH
Ms Mimi CHEUNG Yee-may

Mr Anthony CHIU Ling-cheong

Mr Wilkie CHOI Wing-kee

Mr CHONG Chong-yip, BBS, JP
Ms Joanne CHONG Sze-pui, MH
Mr Charles CHOW Chan-lum, MH
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Bamut
FRELL

BAXL

MH

BBS -

MH

MH

MH -
BBS -

BBS -
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MH °

MH

JP
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MH

JP
JP
JP

- JP

' JP

Name of Observers
Mr Alan CHOW Yiu-ming, MH

Mr Samson CHU Chi-ming

Ms CHUNG Ching-may

Mr Alex FAN Hoi-kit

Mr James Mathew FONG

Mr FONG Ping, BBS, JP

Mr Clement FUNG Cheuk-nang
Dr HO Wai-kuen

Mr Alec HO Yat-wan

Mr Simon HUI Hing-tak

Mr HUI Ka-hoo, BBS, MH

Mr HUI Man-kit

Mr IP Tin-yau, MH

Ms KAM Yim-mui

Mr Ronald KAN Yu-him

Mr Lawrence KEUNG Chi-kong
Mr Edward KO Ming-tung

Dr Charles KOO Ming-yan, MH
Mr David LAl Tat-sang, MH, JP
Mr Billy LAM Chek-yau, BBS, MH, JP
Mr LAM Chi-ki

Dr Lawrence LAM Chi-kit, BBS, MH, JP
Ms Carine LAM Chuen-wa

Mr LAM Chun-sing

Mr LAM Faat-kang, MH

Mr LAM Ho-yeung

Mr Laurie LAM Hoy-lee

Dr LAM Tai-fai, SBS, JP

Mr LAU Hing-wah, MH, JP

Mr LAU Ka-keung, MH, JP

Mr LAU Kar-wah

Mr Benjamin LAU Man-tung
Mr Billy LAU Wai-kwong

Ms LAW Yee-ki

Ms Eva LEE

Ms LEE Fu-fan
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2016/17 LS

Name of Observers
Mr Daeren LEE Kam-ming, MH

Mr LEE Sai-kee

Dr John LEE Sam-yuen, BBS

Mr Patrick LEE Wai-cheong

Mr LEUNG Chi-kong

Mr Pat LEUNG Chi-ming

Mr LEUNG Man-kwong

Mr LEUNG Sau-chi, JP

Ms LEUNG Suk-chong

Mr Joseph LI Chiu-wah

Dr Lawrence LI KWOK-chang, JP
Mr LI Sai-wing

Ms Cecilia LIANG Sun-yin

Dr LIU Kai-ming, MH

Mr LIU Kam-hing

Mr Vincent LO Kai-fu

Mr Norman LO Kam-wah, MH, JP
Dr LO Pui-yin

Mr LO Tze-on

Mr LO Yan-lai, JP

Ms LU Hai, MH, JP

Mr LUI Chi-ho

Mrs Virginia MA LO Kam-wah
Ms Mabel MAK Lok-sheung

Mr Vincent MAK Wai-kwong
Mr Rex MOK Chung-fai, MH, JP
Ms NG Ling-ling, JP

Mr Thomas NG Siu-keung, MH, JP
Hon Jimmy NG Wing-ka, JP

Mr NGAN Siu-lun

Mr Frank PAK Fu-hung, JP

Mr PUN Kwok-wah

Hon Abraham SHEK Lai-him, GBS, JP
Mr Simon SIU Chak-yu, BBS, JP
Mr SIU Chor-kee, BBS, MH, JP
Ms Herdy SO Wai-yin
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2016 & 4 B 1 H¥{E4 Newly-appointed Observers (1 Apr 2016)
2016 % 11 A 1 B#fEas Newly-appointed Observers (1 Nov 2016)
2016 F 4 A 1 BiE{K Retired Observers (1 Apr 2016)

2016 & 11 A 1 BiE{K Retired Observers (1 Nov 2016)

B BT Resigned Observers
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BBS - JP
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Name of Observers

Mr George TAM Siu-ping

Mr TING Kin-wa

Ms TONG Tze-yan

Ms TSANG Ka-lai

Mr TSANG Man-hing

Mr Newman TSANG Yiu-man
Dr Patrick TSE Kwing-chuen
Dr Michael TSUI Fuk-sun

Mr Wesley WAN Wai-hei

Dr Albert WONG, MH

Dr WONG Chung-leung, JP
Ms Macy WONG Mei-sze

Ms WONG Wai-ching, SBS, JP
Mr WONG Wang-to, MH

Mr WONG Yiu-chung, MH

Mr WU Chor-nam, JP

Dr Kitty WU Kit-ying, JP

Mr Bernard WU Tak-lung

Dr Michael YAM Chi-ho

Rev David YEUNG Hok-ming, MH
Mr YEUNG Wai-sing, MH

Mr YEUNG Yiu-chung, BBS, JP
Mr Dieter YIH Lai-tak, JP

Mr Stephen YIP Chun-nam, BBS, MH, JP
Mr Alan YOUNG Tim-tsan

Mr YUEN Tat-tong
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The IPCC is supported by a full-time Secretariat, headed by Secretary-General, with a total of 57 staff members in
2016/17. The major function of the Secretariat is to assist Council Members in examining complaint investigation
reports and in promoting the work of the IPCC.

The organisational chart of the IPCC Secretariat, as at 31 March 2017, is as below:

LARE

Personal Secretary

BRER (FH)
Deputy Secretary-General
(Management)

HERLEERE ANBFERENETE

DHEREFE
Finance & Corporate Human Resources &

Information Public Relations Team
Management Team

Services Team
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(All amounts in Hong Kong Dollars unless otherwise stated)
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Independent auditor’s report to Independent Police Complaints Council

(R4R OB B 5

B RIERFERBE G KL)

(Established under the Independent Police Complaints Council Ordinance)
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Opinion

We have audited the financial statements of the Independent
Police Complaints Council (the “Council”) set out on pages 123 to
141, which comprise the statement of financial position as at 31
March 2017, the statement of comprehensive income, the statement
of changes in reserves and the statement of cash flows for the year
then ended, and notes to the financial statements, including a
summary of significant accounting policies.

In our opinion, the financial statements give a true and fair view of
the financial position of the Council as at 31 March 2017, and of its
financial performance and its cash flows for the year then ended in
accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards
("HKFRSs") issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants (“HKICPA").

Basis for opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards
on Auditing ("HKSAs") issued by the HKICPA. Our responsibilities
under those standards are further described in the auditor's
responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements section of
our report. We are independent of the Council in accordance with
the HKICPA's Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants (“the
Code"), and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in
accordance with the Code. We believe that the audit evidence we
have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our
opinion.
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Information other than the financial statements
and auditor’s report thereon

The Council is responsible for the other information. The other
information comprises the information included in the Annual
report, but does not include the financial statements and our
auditor’s report thereon.

Our opinion on the financial statements does not cover the other
information and we do not express any form of assurance conclusion
thereon.

In connection with our audit of the financial statements, our
responsibility is to read the other information and, in doing so,
consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent
with the financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit
or otherwise appears to be materially misstated. If, based on the
work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material
misstatement of this other information, we are required to report
that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.

Responsibilities of Council and those charged with
governance for the financial statements

The Council is responsible for the preparation of the financial
statements that give a true and fair view in accordance with HKFRSs
issued by the HKICPA and for such internal control as the Council
determines is necessary to enable the preparation of financial
statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to
fraud or error.

In preparing the financial statements, the Council is responsible for
assessing the Council's ability to continue as a going concern,
disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using
the going concern basis of accounting unless the Council either
intends to liquidate the Council or to ceases operations, or has no
realistic alternative but to do so.

Those charged with governance are responsible for overseeing the
Council’s financial reporting process.
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Auditor’s responsibilities for the audit of the
financial statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the
financial statements as a whole are free from material misstatement,
whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s report that
includes our opinion. This report is made solely to you, as a body, in
accordance with section 29 of Schedule 1 of the Independent Police
Complaints Council Ordinance (Cap.604), and for no other purposes.
We do not assume responsibility towards or accept liability to any
other person for the contents of this report. Reasonable assurance is
a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit
conducted in accordance with HKSAs will always detect a material
misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or
error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate,
they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic
decisions of users taken on the basis of these financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAs, we exercise professional

judgment and maintain professional skepticism throughout the

audit. We also:

e |dentify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the
financial statements, whether due to fraud or error, design and
perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain
audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis
for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement
resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as
fraud may involve collusion, forgery,
misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

intentional omissions,

e Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit
in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the
circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion
on the effectiveness of the Council’s internal control.

¢ Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the
reasonableness of accounting estimates and related disclosures

made by the Council.
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Conclude on the appropriateness of the Council’s use of the
going concern basis of accounting and, based on the audit
evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related
to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the
Council’s ability to continue as a going concern. If we conclude
that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw
attention in our auditor’s report to the related disclosures in the
financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to
modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit
evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s report. However,
future events or conditions may cause the Council to cease to
continue as a going concern.

Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the
financial statements, including the disclosures, and whether the
financial statements represent the underlying transactions and
events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding,
among other matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and
significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in
internal control that we identify during our audit.

f%‘nmm&%(/@&r/f

PATRICK WONG C.PA. LIMITED
Certified Public Accountants

LAU YUK MING HAROLD

FCPA (Practising)

Certified Public Accountant (Practising), Hong Kong
Practising Certificate Number: P05468

25 August 2017

Hong Kong
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Statement of comprehensive income — for the year ended 31 March 2017

P& 2017 2016
Notes $ $
Iz A Income
BT B) Government grants 6 66,056,379 55,657,321
HAthUg A Other income 7 6,967 54,683
66,063,846 55,712,004
% H Expenditure
8 Tk 7K Staff costs 8 38,573,851 33,887,467
— MM ATEUE F General and administrative expenses 8 16,909,310 16,672,219
AN& AR B4 Honorarium to Council members 17 808,450 790,120
56,291,611 51,349,806
AFEERREREZEAKEEHE
Surplus and total comprehensive income for the year 8 9,772,235 4,362,198
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Statement of financial position — at 31 March 2017

BisE 2017 2016
Notes $ $
JE# B E Non-current asset
& F & FE Fixed assets 10 4,325,600 5,893,070
BN EE Current assets
1% N 3815 FXTE Deposits and prepayments 3,586,060 2,448,511
H& NMIB&E B Cash and cash equivalents 11 56,456,194 48,878,330
60,042,254 51,326,841
B & {& Current liabilities
IEIEBUFE B) Deferred government grants 12 1,746,072 2,182,156
H {th & 1 3038 I € 518 A Other payables and accruals 13 2,715,113 3,282,911
4,461,185 5,465,067
BN & B {E Net current assets 55,581,069 45,861,774
BEBER®EA{E Total assets less current liabilities 59,906,669 51,754,844
JEEEN & & Non-current liabilities
TEFE BT B) Deferred government grants 12 1,598,611 3,004,406
8 T 49M BN & 8 & Provision for staff gratuities 14 4,086,567 4,301,182
5,685,178 7,305,588
B & R {E Net assets 54,221,491 44,449,256
i {i® Reserves
ZETZA £ Accumulated surplus 54,221,491 44,449,256

AERZZE—+FN\AZ TR BHETRER ARG BRE
Approved and authorised for issue by the Council on 25 August 2017.

f )

ZPIEE - SBS -

xE

Larry KWOK Lam-Kwong, SBS, JP
Chairman
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Statement of changes in reserves — for the year ended 31 March 2017

RrtEeR

Accumulated

surplus

$

XA _Z—HFEMB—HZ#EER Balance at 1 April 2015 40,087,058
FRRH N EE WS Surplus and total comprehensive income for the year 4,362,198
R _E—RE=ZA=1+—HRMA—HZ#ERBalance at 31 March 2016 and at 1 April 2016 44,449,256
FREH N EE WS Surplus and total comprehensive income for the year 9,772,235
B=—2—tF=RA=+—HZ&#kBalance at 31 March 2017 54,221,491
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Statement of cash flows — for the year ended 31 March 2017

Pi¥aE 2017 2016
Note $ $
B E;EH Operating activities
FARBHBKEMEE K
Surplus and other comprehensive income for the year 9,772,235 4,362,198
B3t TS IB1E L F8% Adjustments for :
—#7E Depreciation 2,568,640 2,560,682
—F B U A Interest income (3,971) (51,998)
LEEEHAIcSERK
Operating surplus before working capital changes 12,336,904 6,870,882
e RIERNFKIEZ (GEM) /KD
(Increase)/decrease in deposits and prepayments (1,137,549) 231,626
RIEBR B 2 ORA) /38 0N
(Decrease)/increase in deferred government grants (1,841,879) 3,245,679
HihERIE R ESTE MR Ol ) /38 m
(Decrease)/increase in other payables and accruals (567,798) 1,397,795
BT AmME B E 2 CRiA) /3
(Decrease)/increase in provision for staff gratuities (214,615) 968,154
EERPEENRESMAA
Net cash generated from operating activities 8,575,063 12,714,136
8 EE B Investing activities
8 A [E £ & 7 Purchase of fixed assets (1,001,170) (4,970,518)
B U4 F & Interest received 3,971 51,998
& TEE) 2 I 4 7 F B Net cash used in investing activities (997,199) (4,918,520)
ReRA&FRYMZIBINPHE
Net increase in cash and cash equivalents 7,577,864 7,795,616
FMZBERBEEFR/Y
Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of year 48,878,330 41,082,714
FRZHAGRB&FRD
Cash and cash equivalents at the end of year 11 56,456,194 48,878,330

2016/17 TiE#keE
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1. GENERAL INFORMATION

The Independent Police Complaints Council (the “Council”) is a
body corporate established under the Independent Police Complaints
Council Ordinance. Under the Independent Police Complaints
Council Ordinance (Cap. 604) (the "Ordinance”), the Coundil
assumes its statutory role as the authority for observing, monitoring
and reviewing the handling and investigation of reportable
complaints, and making recommendations to the Commissioner of
Police or the Chief Executive or both of them in respect of the
handling or investigation of reportable complaints as specified in the
Ordinance. The Council also monitors actions taken or to be taken in
respect of any member of the police force by the Commissioner in
connection with reportable complaints, and to advise them of its
opinion on such actions.

Since the Council is not profit-oriented and is not subject to any
externally imposed capital requirements, its primary financial and
capital management objectives are to maintain a balance between
annual income and expenditure, so that it has the ability to operate
as a going concern and perform its statutory roles and functions.

The Council is primarily financed by government subventions. Any
operating surplus shall be carried forward to the following financial
year to meet future expenditure required for the operations of the
Council. The overall capital management strategy remains unchanged
from prior year.

2. STATEMENT OF COMPLIANCE WITH HONG
KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS

The Council's financial statements have been prepared in accordance
with all applicable Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards
("HKFRSs"”), which includes all applicable individual Hong Kong
Financial Reporting Standards, Hong Kong Accounting Standards
("HKASs") and Interpretations issued by the Hong Kong Institute of
Certified Public Accountants (“HKICPA™) and accounting principles
generally accepted in Hong Kong. A summary of significant
accounting policies is set out in note 3.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES

Basis of preparation of the financial statements

The measurement basis used in preparing the financial
statements is at historical cost.

Fixed assets

Fixed assets are stated in the statement of financial position at
cost less subsequent accumulated depreciation and subsequent
impairment losses, if any.

Depreciation is recognised so as to write off the cost of assets
less their residual values over their estimated useful lives, using
the straight-line method, as follows:—

e Leasehold improvements 3 years
e Office equipment 5 years
e Computer equipment 3 years
e Furniture and fixtures 3 years

The estimated useful lives, residual values and depreciation
method are reviewed at the end of each reporting period, with
the effect of any changes in estimate accounted for on a
prospective basis.

An item of fixed assets is derecognised upon disposal or when
no future economic benefits are expected to arise from the
continued use of the asset. Any gain or loss arising on the
disposal or retirement of an item of fixed assets is determined as
the difference between the sales proceeds and the carrying
amount of the asset and is recognised in profit or loss.

Leases

A Lease is an agreement whereby the lessor conveys to the
lessee in return for a payment or series of payments the right to
use an asset for an agreed period of time. Determining whether
an arrangement is, or contains, a lease is based on the substance
of the arrangement and requires an assessment of whether
fulfilment of the arrangement is dependent on the use of a
specific asset or assets and the arrangement conveys a right to
use the asset.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

Leases (continued)

Leases are classified as finance leases when the terms of leases
transfer substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership to
the lessee. All other leases are classified as operating leases.

Operating leases

Lease payments under an operating lease are recognised as an
expense on a straight-line basis over the lease term. The
payments made on acquiring land held under an operating
lease are recognised in the statement of financial position as
lease premium for land.

Contingent rents are charged as an expense in the periods in
which they are incurred.

Deposits and prepayments

Deposits and prepayments are initially recognised at fair value
and thereafter stated at amortised cost less allowance for
impairment of doubtful debts, except where the effect of
discounting would be immaterial. In such cases, the receivables
are stated at cost less allowance for impairment of doubtful
debts.

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash comprises cash on hand and at bank. Cash equivalents are
short-term, highly liquid investments that are readily convertible
to known amounts of cash and which are subject to an
insignificant risk of changes in value.

Other payables

Other payables are initially measured at fair value and, after
initial recognition, at amortised cost, except for short-term
payables with no stated interest rate and the effect of discounting
being immaterial, that are measured at their original invoice
amount.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

Provisions and contingent liabilities

Provisions are recognised for liabilities of uncertain timing or
amount when the Council has a legal or constructive obligation
arising as a result of a past event, it is probable that an outflow
of economic benefits will be required to settle the obligation
and a reliable estimate can be made. Where the time value of
money is material, provisions are stated at the present value of
the expenditure expected to settle the obligation.

Where it is not probable that an outflow of economic benefits
will be required, or the amount cannot be estimated reliably, the
obligation is disclosed as a contingent liability, unless the
probability of outflow of economic benefits is remote. Possible
obligations, whose existence will only be confirmed by the
occurrence or non-occurrence of one or more future events are
also disclosed as contingent liabilities unless the probability of
outflow of economic benefits is remote.

Income recognition

Income is measured at the fair value of the consideration
received or receivable. Provided that it is probable that the
economic benefits associated with the income transaction will
flow to the Council and the income and the costs, if any, in
respect of the transaction can be measured reliably, income is
recognised as follows:

(i) Government grants

Government grants are recognised at their fair value where
there is a reasonable assurance that the grant will be
received and the Council will comply with all attached
conditions.

Government grants relating to the purchase of fixed assets
are included in deferred income and are credited to the
statement of comprehensive income on a straight-line basis
over the expected lives of the related assets.

(i) Interest income

Interest income is recognised using the effective interest
method.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

Employee benefits
(i) Employee leave entitlements

Employee entitlements to annual leave are recognised
when they accrue to employees. A provision is made for
the estimated liability for annual leave as a result of services
rendered by employees up to the end of reporting period.

Employee entitlements to sick leave and maternity or
paternity leave are not recognised until the time of leave.

(i) Retirement benefit costs

The Council has joined the Mandatory Provident Fund
Scheme (the MPF Scheme) established under the Mandatory
Provident Fund Ordinance for non-civil service contract
staff. The Council contributes 5% of the relevant income of
staff members under the MPF Scheme and subject to ceiling
of $1,500 per month. The assets of the Scheme are held
separately from those of the Council, in funds under the
control of trustee.

Payments to the MPF Scheme are charged as an expense as
they fall due.

Impairment of tangible and intangible assets other than goodwill

At the end of reporting period, the Council reviews the carrying
amounts of its tangible and intangible assets with finite useful
lives to determine whether there is any indication that those
assets have suffered an impairment loss. If any such indication
exists, the recoverable amount of the asset is estimated in order
to determine the extent of the impairment loss, if any. When it
is not possible to estimate the recoverable amount of an
individual asset, the Council estimates the recoverable amount
of the cash-generating unit to which the asset belongs. When a
reasonable and consistent basis of allocation can be identified,
corporate assets are also allocated to individual cash-generating
units, or otherwise they are allocated to the smallest group of
cash-generating units for which a reasonable and consistent
allocation basis can be identified.
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3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

(k) Related parties

a)

A person or a close member of that person’s family is
related to the Council if that person:

(i) has control or joint control over the Council;

(i) has significant influence over the Council; or

(iii) is a member of the key management personnel of the
Council.

An entity is related to the Council if any of the following
conditions applies:

(i) The entity is a post-employment benefit plan for the
benefit of employees of either the Council or an entity
related to the Council.

(i)  The entity is controlled or jointly controlled by a person
identified in (a).

(iii) A person identified in (a)(i) has significant influence
over the entity or is a member of the key management
personnel of the entity.
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4. CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The Council has initially applied the new and revised HKFRSs issued
by the HKICPA that are first effective for accounting periods
beginning on or after 1 April 2016, including:—

B E

R (ERTAR) BEAFBRELN —F

“HEECT-MEEARFENE

Amendment to HKFRSs, Annual Improvements to HKFRSs 2012-2014 Cycle

BFREGETERNE 15 (BRIA) HETE

Amendments to HKAS 1, Disclosure initiative

FR e ERIZE 1657 M5 38 5% (&

SEIAR) BB ITE MBI T R AR DA

Amendments to HKAS 16 and HKAS 38, Clarification of acceptable methods of depreciation and amortisation

RAFEEAZERBWHREER L
AENPERERRMARRAALLBEEAR
2 .

5. EEEREERFIER
AR B 7 8 59 £ AR BT B MR
BoARERERAVEINEE A

& WARFRHE SRR EREL
HEg - ARt AR o EELHIE - AR
BRREABEERLRZHREMBNARIS

MTRIEEEZRAZREE - BEEE
BHIEL A - ERT REBRIFLFER
A BERERATBEA IR FAET -

EHEMBRREENELFERR LR
9 R =V E R FE 16 o B AR %8R
FETEL AR KB - TREITSEK
EXER BT —HHRFEEERE
EREREERERBISE] °

6. TR

BB EBNERAHAG BTk
BHES BHEERERAENEER
(BE#IRFEREREZEEF) M
EE -

The application of the new and revised HKFRSs has no material
effects on the Council’s financial performance and positions.

5. CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND
JUDGEMENT

The Council's management makes assumptions, estimates and
judgements in the process of applying the Council's accounting
policies that affect the assets, liabilities, income and expenses in the
financial statements prepared in accordance with HKFRSs. The
assumptions, estimates and judgements are based on historical
experience and other factors that are believed to be reasonable
under the circumstances. While the management reviews their
judgements, estimates and assumptions continuously, the actual
results will seldom equal to the estimates.

Certain key assumptions and risk factors in respect of the financial
risk management are set out in note 16. There are no other key
sources of estimation uncertainty that have a significant risk of
causing a material adjustment to the carrying amounts of asset and
liabilities within the next financial year.

6. GOVERNMENT GRANTS

Government grants represent the funds granted by the Government
for the Council’s services which is determined with regard to the
needs of the Council as presented in its annual budget and proposed
projects.
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7. OTHER INCOME

A EUA Interest income

AU A Sundry income

2017 2016

$ $
3,971 51,998
2,996 2,685
6,967 54,683

8. FARBRREEHIZ

FRARHBEEEBRD A

8. SURPLUS AND TOTAL COMPREHENSIVE
INCOME FOR THE YEAR

Surplus and total comprehensive income for the year is arrived at
after charging:

2017 2016
$ $
(@) BIRKZR Staff costs

— 38 #ME AFE S KX Contributions to Mandatory Provident Funds 851,588 768,012
— %%« TENEAFEF] Salaries, wages and other benefits 37,722,263 33,119,455
38,573,851 33,887,467

(b) —MR K 1T FA General and administrative expenses
ZEEEN € Auditor’s remuneration 38,000 38,000
YR 2B E 1R & F Rent, rates and management fee 9,188,656 8,379,140
AR KA E75%E A Public and educational affairs expenses 627,205 1,598,240
B 851218 A Observers’ scheme expenses 1,116,218 432,667
{RE2%E F Insurance 48,316 48,881
HEAEFN{RES Repair and maintenance 1,768,042 961,493
SN 75 57 5 B F3 Overseas duty visit - 322,116
N EE A Utilities 318,539 308,779
#7 % Depreciation 2,568,640 2,560,682
=2 AR E F Professional services 350,000 600,000
H & Miscellaneous 885,694 1,422,221
16,909,310 16,672,219

RIBCIHISRDG]) 5 87 RHIIRTE - A&
BB RN - Bl A S EALE A5 H
KRB BHEHERE -

BUERLHEEERHFEZES 2016/17 TIERE

9. TAXATION

No provision for Hong Kong Profits Tax has been made in the financial
statements as the Council is exempted from profits tax pursuant to
section 87 of the Inland Revenue Ordinance.



10.BEEE 10. FIXED ASSETS

HEREIE FARKE MWOERM B R

Leasehold Furniture and Office Computer bt ]
improvements fixtures equipment equipment Total
$ $ $ $ $
% Cost
RZE—RAFMHA—HAt1 April 2015 3,775,450 420,811 1,322,347 5,057,188 10,575,796
H#EE Additions 43,900 60,658 11,068 4,854,892 4,970,518
% & Disposals - (2,509) - = (2,509)
RZE—"F=H=+—HAt 31 March 2016 3,819,350 478,960 1,333,415 9,912,080 15,543,805
FEHAE Accumulated depreciation
R-ZZE—RAFMHA—HAt 1 April 2015 2,921,586 275,057 1,089,674 2,806,245 7,092,562
FHTEE Charge for the year 850,822 97,446 99,318 1,513,096 2,560,682
£ E 1% $H Write back on disposals = (2,509) = = (2,509)
R-ZF—RF=A=+—HAt31 March 2016 3,772,408 369,994 1,188,992 4,319,341 9,650,735
ARE R {E Net book value
R-ZF—RF=A=+—HAt 31 March 2016 46,942 108,966 144,423 5,592,739 5,893,070
R % Cost
R-ZZF—/RFMNA—HAt 1 April 2016 3,819,350 478,960 1,333,415 9,912,080 15,543,805
H#E Additions 17,500 115,948 - 867,722 1,001,170
R=-ZF—+F=H=+—HAt 31 March 2017 3,836,850 594,908 1,333,415 10,779,802 16,544,975
Z T & Accumulated depreciation
R=ZZF—/RFMA—HAt 1 April 2016 3,772,408 369,994 1,188,992 4,319,341 9,650,735
F YT E Charge for the year 24,592 76,028 81,482 2,386,538 2,568,640
R-ZF—+F=H=+—HAt 31 March 2017 3,797,000 446,022 1,270,474 6,705,879 12,219,375
AR B {8 Net book value
R-ZT—+F=HF=+—HAt 31 March 2017 39,850 148,886 62,941 4,073,923 4,325,600
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11. CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

#R771F 7k Cash at banks

MBIMRERRERERZ AT RREEEY

Cash and cash equivalents in the statement of financial position and

the statement of cash flows

2017 2016

$ $
56,456,194 48,878,330
56,456,194 48,878,330

12. 50 SiE B 5 46 B 12. DEFERRED GOVERNMENT GRANTS

2017 2016

$ $

R-ZT—RF/ T —AHFNA—HEH
Balance as at 1 April 2016/2015 5,186,562 1,940,883
2 Y BN Grants received 350,000 4,500,000
FRER AU R ELE8 Recognised as income in the year (2,191,879) (1,254,321)
R-E—+&F /T R"FZA=+—Br%H%
Balance as at 31 March 2017/2016 3,344,683 5,186,562
S A LREN A (E ] FUEEE Less: Amount included in “current liabilities” (1,746,072) (2,182,156)
2 ASEREN A & | 898058 Amount included in “non-current liabilities” 1,598,611 3,004,406

ERCWHBEIREANEE  BRE8
KW E B PR EVE T F & BT A RS E
FHAR o

13.EttEREARENER

The grants received are mainly for the firewall upgrade for the electronic
platform used among Members, Observers and the Secretariat.

13. OTHER PAYABLES AND ACCRUALS

81758 f& Financial liabilities
RIER 89 4 R Unutilized annual leave

2017 2016

$ $
1,370,769 2,002,349
1,344,344 1,280,562

H A A FR & B AT B TR TR
B -

W EBEREEERFEZEE 201617 TIERE

Other payables and accruals are expected to be settled within one
year.



14. BTV A& IBE 14. PROVISION FOR STAFF GRATUITIES

2017 2016
$ $
RZZT—RF/ZT—AFMA—BNEHS
Balance as at 1 April 2016/2015 4,301,182 3,333,028
B st He# & Provision made 3,262,283 2,799,663
£ E & Provision utilised (3,476,898) (1,831,509)
RZZT—+F/ _Z—R"F=ZA=+—HNOEH
Balance as at 31 March 2017/2016 4,086,567 4,301,182
STI#4mleEERes T INXES Provision for staff gratuities is set up for the gratuity payments which
RETE TR FER =FE LM E T will be payable to employees of the Council who complete their two
L AT VA or three-year contracts commencing from the date of their
employment.

15. iz 15. COMMITMENTS

R-ZT—+F=ZA=+—8 - REFA At 31 March 2017, the total future minimum lease payments under
fERRE S B E R RIRENOYERE non-cancellable operating leases in respect of properties are payable
MENERTENAT as follows:

2017 2016

$ $

—& A Within 1 year 11,687,556 2,716,789
— 1% {B A F A After 1 year but within 5 years 15,583,408 =
27,270,964 2,716,789
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16. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

The Council has classified its financial assets in the following
categories:

B H B U FRIE Loans and receivables

%% Deposits
184 MIR & S (E% Cash and cash equivalents

2017 2016

$ $

2,962,157 2,000,703

56,456,194 48,878,330
e 5941 83 51 ................. 50 87 90 33 J

AefEMBRED RATER

The Council has classified its financial liabilities in the following
categories:

BB ENMBEAR
Financial liabilities measured at amortised cost
2017 2016
$ $
H b {7108 I FE 5T & F Other payables and accruals 1,370,769 2,002,349

AR T ANKMERY —FT—RF
NZ_ZE—+F=A=1T—HFEFHA
FEERBEERER -

AGNSEEHRERT AEEALE
B - RBESRRETIBER o £
&E B THRERZZAR - R
ZERRHARNHBRARIRROE
FETFIRE -

W EBEREEERFEZEE 201617 TIERE

All financial instruments are carried at amounts not materially
different from their fair values as at 31 March 2016 and 2017.

The Council is exposed to credit risk, liquidity risk and market risk
arising in the normal course of its operation and financial instruments.
The Council's risk management objectives, policies and processes
mainly focus on minimising the potential adverse effects of these
risks on its financial performance and position by closely monitoring
the individual exposure.



16. &R T R (#8)

16. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

(@ FERKR (a) Credit risk
refWEsEAEREERE M The Council has no concentration of credit risk. The maximum
SEBIEEREEENEE A exposure to credit risk is represented by the carrying amount of
HE - A2 ZERETIERAH the financial assets. The Council is exposed to credit risk on
RITER - SRITEXNEARR 2 financial assets, mainly attributable to deposits with banks. The
ER  ASEFEARZIRTHAESTES credit risk on bank deposits is limited because the counterparties
RITIEUIIRE B TEHE are authorised financial institutions regulated under the Hong
Kong Banking Ordinance.
2017 2016
$ $
8138 —% Summary quantitative data
&% Deposits 2,962,157 2,000,703
#R171F 5 Bank balances 56,456,194 48,878,330
59,418,351 50,879,033
(b) REBEZEMR (b) Liquidity risk

rennsEzRER eV BEIE -
SHESFLERER R

HEOHES MRS HERE - LUkE

EEEFNTE

The Council is exposed to liquidity risk on financial liabilities. It
manages its funds conservatively by maintaining a comfortable
level of cash and cash equivalents in order to meet continuous
operational need. The Council ensures that it maintains sufficient
cash which is available to meet its liquidity.

SHKRITER
HeRERH —ERE
Total contractual REREF
IRE{E undiscounted Within 1 year or
Carrying amount cash flow on demand
$ $ $
2017
HAbfE S RIB R ERT B
Other payables and accruals 1,370,769 1,370,769 1,370,769
2016
HAubfE S sRIB R ERT B
Other payables and accruals 2,002,349 2,002,349 2,002,349
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16. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

(©

Market risk

Interest rate risk

The Council's exposure on fair value interest rate risk mainly
arises from its cash deposits with bank which are classified as
loans and receivables.

The Council mainly holds deposits with bank in saving account
and the exposure is considered not significant. In consequence,
no material exposure on fair value interest rate risk is expected.

8138 —% Summary quantitative data

i# B35 5 & Floating-rate financial assets

$R17457F Deposits with banks

2017 2016
$ $
28,193,734 26,421,262

AR A P EE A RN R B B VR B
R - BSEE BRI RER
BARENHBARTEELEAF
2 .

d) ARAFEAEZEHMTE
RBEHR - AgWRELHMITH

ARFEFER »

17.RBAER S
MIEBETBRENR SRR - A
SHEERFRENETZRSHE
B

No sensitivity analysis for the Council’s exposure to interest rate
risk arising from deposits with bank is prepared since based on
the management’s assessment the exposure is considered not
significant.

Financial instrument at fair value

At the end of reporting period, there were no financial
instruments stated at fair value.

17. MATERIAL RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

The Council had the following material related party transactions
during the year:

A& RL 8 B4 Honorarium paid to Council members

2017 2016
$ $
808,450 790,120

AR SRR AR S (e
BRARMKEREEEIBABRTLS
AR 27 R EHBRT R
PR MBI I A R I R AR
7

2016/17 LS

All transactions related to the procurement of goods and services
involving organisations in which a member of the Council and key
management personnel may have an interest are conducted in the
normal course of business and in accordance with the Council’s
financial obligations and normal procurement procedures.
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BIEBRFEAEE2017F6 A22H
FEIM(ITRZHE =S ([H =)
FoE AGAMRBREEARBHAZ
KEEEERRE  MZIERBET
EREHZVMBRFELEEENEN
25% ° GNFZ BB HA R 2 (R S A 5%
B EERKEEMEEBEN25% @ BIE
B EEBLEXRREIE &g
AR FRAOSBEY T —EYBEE
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19. EMMIER FRARKRER
HEEBMBGREER

AN TIE B ERFERRRER 2 ES
MmE R L ERIEAE EE
KEI BRI AR -

18. EVENTS AFTER THE END OF REPORTING PERIOD

Subsequent to the end of reporting period, the Council had the
following non-adjusting event.

In accordance with section 6 of the Memorandum of Administrative
Arrangements (“MAA") dated 22 June 2017 signed between the
Government of the Hong Kong Special Administrative Region (“the
Government”) and the Council, the Council is allowed to keep and
accumulate any unspent recurrent subvention as reserve, subject to
the condition that the reserve accumulated should not exceed 25%
of its recurrent subvention of that financial year. If the reserve as at
the end of the financial year exceeds 25% of the recurrent subvention
of that financial year, the Council shall return the amount in excess
of the limit to the Government, except with the approval of Secretary
for Financial Services and the Treasury, by means of deducting the
excessive reserve from its subvention of the next financial year.

19. HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS ISSUED BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE
FOR THE YEAR

HKFRSs that have been issued but are not yet effective for the year
include the following HKFRSs which may be relevant to the Council’s
operations and financial statements:

BLLTF S5 BENA MW 1L 6 4 2%

Effective for annual periods

ARG ERR 7R EFIAN) - HREX - KEDZ

Amendments to HKAS 7, Statement of cash flows: Disclosure initiative

ARV WMELANEIR - 2@ T A
HKFRS 9, Financial Instrument

BBV MELER|FE 155 « FEALMKE
HKFRS 15, Revenue from contracts with customers

HBMBRELRE 1658 - HE
HKFRS 16, Leases

beginning on or after

R=ZT—LF—A—A
1 January 2017
RZZE—-N\F—H—H
1 January 2018
R=-F—/\F—H—H
1 January 2018
R_ZE—NF—H—H
1 January 2019

ZER MG HRE L NAFZ I EH
BRan - T HEBRRAZ S BB
HEEMNTGHARS B RRRFENM
BRRELEATE - AEHBETE
A ERBMEREER MEMBLILER]
MBEAEBNTE

20. ;BBMBRE

KB HmROHN—_E—+tFEN\A-+tH
BEIASHEE T M -

These HKFRSs have not yet been adopted in this year. Initial
assessment has indicated that the adoption of these HKFRSs would
not have a significant impact on the Council’s financial statements in
the year of initial application. The Council will be continuing with the
assessment of the impact of these HKFRSs and other significant
changes may be identified as a result.

20. APPROVAL OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

These financial statements were authorised for issue by the Council
on 25 August 2017.
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Performance pledges

EEFERIFNENEERE ST T —RIIMBRIREE

We attach great importance to efficient and quality performance.
Our performance pledges are:

Handling of cases d Performance target
BHEWERE (standard response time)

RAER(EEOERRE)

Enquiries By telephone /in person Immediately
=i HE/ B B

In writing Within 10 days
&M 10 KA

Monitoring of Normal cases Within 3 months
complaints —RE= 3EAMA

BRI Complicated cases Within 6 months
BREER 6 EARA

Review cases Within 6 months

BER 6 fElA R

d HEERFERRERFERE/ OERN B LT
Counting from the date of receipt of CAPO’s final investigation report/ response

4 —RIAE : MRFERRRETZR —WE AN EMEZR (flanL BR5 s 28 )
Normal cases: minor cases (such as Impoliteness or Neglect of Duty) with no more than one round of Query
raised by the IPCC with CAPO

d BHER - TAREMNESR (PINERIT S BEER) @ skMIRFERRREZN —HE RS MER
Complicated cases: all serious cases (such as Assault or Fabrication of Evidence) and minor cases with two
or more rounds of Queries raised by the IPCC with CAPO

d BRER  BRBERAERKFOATER D BENER

Review cases: requests for reviewing the classification of Reportable Complaints
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The Independent Police
Complaints Council will do
its utmost to ensure that the
Police carry out their duties in
accordance with the law and
safeguard the fine traditions
of our Police Force to serve the
people of Hong Kong.

HERFAUD FRABRERE  —ASBEcH=E? FEKX  PIRKREESHRLOEEIBL] -
[AEIRTHE] KRBEESFRFHE-FAEBEEEZEZE —SRHFEZE -

The cover design carries the theme “molecule”. A molecular compound is a composite of three atoms with each
of them representing a core value of the IPCC, i.e. “Independence”, “Impartiality” and “Integrity”. The design
signifies that the IPCC upholds these three core values when scrutinising every complaint case.
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